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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Triveni Engineering Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triveni Engineering
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

" financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

- HEAD OFFICE : B-17, Maharani Bagh, New Delhi - 110065



Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we d_o
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read thue
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the d_ther information is materiall y
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work wre
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements '

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financizl
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accountin g,
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specifie d
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularitiess;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. -

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to- obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement an d
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to desig;n
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other me “=rs that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issue=d
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the mattexs
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accoun t.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “ Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of Section 197(16) of
the Act are not applicable for the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.



ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co..
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 001111N

_/_’_) é"
udhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

UDIN: l!oaoaﬂAAAAA 09948

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021



Annexure A to Independent Auditors” Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under thue
heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members of
Triveni Engineering Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ende d
on March 31, 2021.

1.

Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the provisions Of
clauses (i)(a), (i)(b) & (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (ii) Of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to
the Company. :

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions of clauses
(iti) (a), (iii) (b) & (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee or
security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to
the extent applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given
to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at
March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.



10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no dues cf
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Valu e
Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues, which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has noot
borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government and has not
issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii) of paragraph 3 Of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including delbt
instruments) nor any term loan was taken by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid/provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2016 are not applicable. : -

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with related
parties and details of transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give tb us, the Company has not
made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-

ish transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
: =5

&



16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserv-¢
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 001111N

Sudhir Mallick
Partner

Membership No. 80051
UDIN: 210800SIAAAAAD 1948

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021



Annexure B to Independent Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f)
of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
Engineering Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls- over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting,.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurarice regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. '

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 001111N

PR / f'i,
Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

UDIN: LIo§00STARAAACIYLE

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in & Howsands, weeless othe rotse stated )

Nale No. 31-Mar-21 M0
ASSETS
Non-current assels
Investment property 2 43593.78 4250378
Income tax assets (net) 3 17.18 17,18
Total non-current assets 43610.96 A3610,96
Current assets
Financial assets
i.  Cash and cash equivalents 4 (a) 157.94 204,44
ii, Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 (b) 118.89 112,50
iii. Other financial assets 5 0.62 0.22
‘Total current assets 277.45 377,56
Total assets 43888.41 A3988,52
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 6 26500.00 26500,001
Other equity
i, Equity component of compound financial instruments 6 15291.74 15291.74
ii. Retained earnings 7 (3777.92) (3271.03)
Total equity 38013.82 852071
LIABILITIES
Non-current labilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 8 5861.08 5152.17)
Total non-current liabilities 5861.08 5152.17,
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i, Trade payables 9
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - .
(b} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.80 11.80
Other current liabilities 10 = 0,50
Income tax liabilities (net) 3 171 3,34
Total current liabilities 13.51 15,64
Total liabilities 5874.59 5467.31]
Total equity and liabilities 43888.41 43988.52]

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Agcountants
Firm's registrafion number : 001111N

Sudhir Mallick
Fartner
Membership No. 80051

Pace: NOTPA (Uf)

Date : 17 June 2021

Foryand on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited

Atul AgBarwal
Director

P NGO DAC O



TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al amannts i ¥ thousads, nwnless otheranse stated)

31-Mar-21 SMar 20

Other income 11 6.79 13,24
Total income 6.79 13,28
Expenses

Finance costs 12 408.91 80,381
Other expenses 13 103.06 102,74
Total expenses 511.97 a83.12
Profit/(loss) before tax (505.18) (169,84)
Tax expense:

- Current tax 14 1.71 KR
- Deferred tax 14 % .
Total tax expense 1.71 3.0
Profit/(loss) for the year (506.89) (473,18)
Other comprehensive income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - g
A (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss = |

B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
B (i) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax = B
Total comprehensive income for the year (506.89) (473.18)

Earnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥ 1 each
Basic 15 (0.02) (0.02)
Diluted 15 (0.02) (0.02)

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company For
Chartered Agcountants
Firm's registr ’vumber 1 001111N

d on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineerimg Limited

[ A

Sudpdr Mallick Debajit Bagchi Atul Aggarwal
tner Director Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 02561320 DIN: 06875769

Place : H()"D A (“ .()) Place | D‘tbh LU ‘?) Place : NO‘IBP\ Y 'V)

Date : 17 June 2021




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equily for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amonnts in T thonsaneds, wnless olherworse staled)

A, Equity share capital
Equity shares of 2 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2019 26500,001
Movement during the year -
As at 31 March 2020 2650000
Movement during the year -|
As at 31 March 2021 26500.00{

B. Other equity

Equity companent of

compound finangial
instruments

Reserves and'surplus

Retained earnings

Total other equ ity

Balance as at 31 March 2019 15291.74 (2797.85) 124.93,89
Profit/ (loss) for the year - (473.18) (473.18)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - - .
Total comprehensive income for the year - (473.18) (4773.18)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 15291.74 (3271.03) 120020.71
Profit/ (loss) for the year - (506.89) (5C10,8Y9)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - (506.89) (506.89)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 15291.74 (3777.92) 1151382

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's regis 'ow&r S 001111IN

udtiir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Piace:ND p n (“ \"?)

Date : 17 June 2021

Atul Aggarwal
Director '

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited

e O YNEVRLD)




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amounts in & Hiousands, unless otherunse stoled)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax (505.18) (469.84)
Adjustments for :

Interest income (6.79) (13.28) J

Finance costs 408,91 380.38
Working capital adjustments :

Change in other liabilities (0.50) .50
Cash gene;ated from f(used in) operations (103.56) (102.24)
Income tax (paid)/refund (3.34) (3.89)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (106.90) (106.13)
Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks (6.39) 287.50
Interest received 65,39 34.94/
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities = 322.44
Cash flows from financing activities = =
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (106.90) 21631
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year [refer note 4 (a)] 264.84 48,53
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [refer note 4 (a)] 157.94 264.84

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

Non-current

borrowings
[refer note f & 8)

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Cash flows #
Finance costs accruals 380.38
Balance as at 31 March 2020 5452.17
Cash flows -
Finance costs accruals 408.91
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5861.08

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accoyntants
Firm's registratio ber : 001111N

Sodhir Mallick Debajit Bagchi
Partner Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 02561320

Place : N 0\' D ﬂ (\, .p) Place :

Date : 17 June 2021

Atul Aggarwal
Director

DIN: 068?5?6‘2\

For aid on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited

Place:Nf}wh L\j ! ?)




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Corporate information

Triveni Engineering Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at 8™ floor, Exxpress
Trade Towers, 15-16, Sector 16A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201301.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements, These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, wunless
otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

(€)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Xndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention, Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Noles to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(d)

(e)

(£)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which the e are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units), Non-financial assets that suffered an impaimment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. Wheen an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the resvised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not e xceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assiet for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
catrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and, where applicable, borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.
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(8)

(h)

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated wseful
lives as stated in Schedule 1I along with residual values of 5%.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the oblig ation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognise d as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(ii) A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, wnless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period (except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made).

(iif) A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

(iv) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Financial assets
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost,

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(ii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
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(iii)

(iv)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business mod«l for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measuresment
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amoxtised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest irmcome
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI,

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected cred it loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its firmancial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but asstames a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial lia bilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.
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(ii) Measurement
Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaxction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVITL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVITPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

* Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVIPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item,

(iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(j) Compound financial instruments
Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise preference shares redeemable at
par at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment, however after 3 years of allotment the
Company shall have the option to (to be exercised at the beginning of each year) to redeem these
preference shares at any time. The preference shares shall be non-convertible. The preference shares
have a coupon rate of 10% and shall be non-cumulative.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value
which is determined as the present value of the eventual redemption amount discounted at the
market rate of return. The equity component is initially recognised at the difference between-the fair
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(k)

()

(m)

()

value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability compcnent,
Any directly attributable costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proport&on to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrum«ent is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The equity component of a
compound financial instruments is not remeasured subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss, unless it qualifies for incRusion
in the cost of an asset,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet ‘where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable: right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of bu siness
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregatexd.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance
with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares,

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Note 2 Investment propery

sross carrylng a
Of 43593.78 A0
Additions
Deletions - '
Closing gross carrying amount 43593.78 LRLVA R
Accumulated depreciation and impalrment
Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment *

Depreciation charge/ impalrment losses -
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment -

Net carrying amount 43593.78 41503,78

(1) Description about investment property
The Company's investment property consist of parcel of land at Dibai, District Bulandshahar, Uttar Pradeshy, India,

() Amount recognised in stalement of profit and loss
There is no amount related to investment property which is recognised in statement of profit and loss,

(iii} Restrictions on realisability and contractual obligations
The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and na cantractual obligations to either purchase, construct or develop Insestiment
property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements,

{iv) Fair value

The investment property owned by the Company is situated in the vicinity of sugarcane prowings areas, The property was purchased in the year 2015-16 at the « licle rate
from the Holding Company. In view of slowdawn in real estate and industrial activitios, the fair value cannot be determined realistically in the absence of transaclions of
similar properties {including size) in the vicinity of the subject property,

Note 3: Income tax balances

Al-Mar-21 A1-Mar-20

Current Nons current Current' | Nom= cirnent

Income tax assets

Tax refund receivable (net) - 17.18 - 17,18
= 17.18 - 17,18
Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) 1.71 - 33
1.71 - au =

Note 4: Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in current account 157.94 2064 B4
Cash on hand =L .
Total cash and cash equivalents 157.94 264.84

{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in fixed deposit 118.89 112,50

tj‘oial bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 118.89 112,50

Note 5: Other financial assets

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current Non-current

Al amortised cost

Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.62 - 0x -
Tatal other financial assels 0.62 - 0.22 =
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Note 6: Share capital

3-Mar-21 31:Mar-200
Number of shares Amount  Numberof shares P LTI
AUTHORISED
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 20,00,00,000 200000, 20,00,00,000 200000 (0]
Preference shares of 2 1 each 5,00,00,000 S0000.00 5,00,00,000 ERO000.00)

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UI"
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 2,65,00,000 26500.00 2,65,00,000 220500, (6

10% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of 2 1 each
- Equity component of compound financial instruments 20,000,000 * 15291.74 20,000,000 * 1520174

(i} Movements in share capital

Movements in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2019 2,65,00,000 20500,00)
{Movement during the year = -
As at 31 March 2020 2,65,00,000 26500, 14
Movement during the year — -
As at 31 March 2021 2,65,00,000 26500.00)
M ts in equity comg t of compound financial instruments- 10% Non-Cumulative Red ble P e shares

As at 31 March 2019 20,000,000 * 1529174
Movement during the year = -
As at 31 March 2020 20,000,000 * 15291. 14
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2021 20,000,000 * 15291.74

(i) Terms and rights attached to shares

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of 2 1/ per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled 1o one vote per share, The Company’ declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 15 subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual Ceneral
Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled |0 receive the remaining assels of the Campany, after mesting all liabilities and
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Terms and rights attached to preference shares

Each preference share has a par value of 2 1/- each and i redeemable at par at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment, however after 3 years of allotment the
Company shall have the option (to be exercised al the beginning of each year) to redeem these preference shares at any time. The preference shares shall be non-
convertible. The preference shares have a coupon rate of 10% and are non-cumulative. The preference shares rank ahead of the equity shares in the event of liquiciation.

(iii) Details of shares held by the holding ¢ y, its subsidiaries and associates

J1-N F=Mlar-20)

Number of shares Yo holding Numberof shares “holding

Equity shares of 21 each
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company} 2,65,00,000

10% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of 71 each
Svastida Projects Limited (Fellow subsidiary) 20,000,000 *

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31-Mar-21 31-NMar-20
Nuomber of shares Wohelding  Numberof shares Yo holding

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited {Holding Company) 2,65,00,000

10% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of T 1 each
Svastida Projects Limited (Fellow subsidiary) 20,000,000 * 100% 20,000,000 *

* This represents total number of 10% Mon-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of 21 each issued. The equity component of such compound financial instruments
is reflected in this note and the liability component of such financial instruments is reflected in non-current borrowings (refer note 8).
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Note 7: Retained ecarnings

Opening balance (3271.0%) [=EEEET)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (506.89) (A7, 1))
Closing balance (3777.92) (=9271,00)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distribuled 10 its equity shareholders in accardance with the provisions of the Cormpanies
Act, 203,

Note # Non-current borrowings

e e e e e e S s e e e e P )

Unsecured- at amortised cost
Liability component of compound financial instruments
- 10% Non-Cumulative Red ble Prefi @ shares of 2 1 each (refer note 6) 5861.08 55217

Total Non-current borrowings 5861.08 MSL1T

The compound financial instruments (Preference shares) are presented in the balance sheet as follows:

Face value of compound financial instruments (Preference shares) issued 20000.00 2000000
Equity component of compound financial instrumenis (Preference shares) (refer note 6) (15291.74) (15201.74)

4708.26 ATOH, 20|
Interest accrued 1152.82 391
Liability component of compound financial instruments {Preference shares)- Mon-current borrowings 5861.08 845217

(i) The effective interest rate of above borrowings is 7.5% per annum (31 March 2020: 7.5% per annum).

Note 9: Trade payables

J1-Mar-21 A1-Nar-20

MNaons current Curerent Nomw s current

Currenl

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (refer note 21)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enferprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables 11.80 - 11.80 -

11.80 - 11.80

Note 10: Other liabilities

Jl-Dlar-21 A1-Mar-20
Current Non- ¢urrent Current Nomes current
Statulory remitlances - . 0.50 -
Total other liabilities . : 0.50 -

Note 11: Other income

income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 6.79 13.28)

Total other income 6.79 13,23!

Note 12: Finance costs

Interest on borrowings 408.91 380138
Total finance costs 408,91 380.38|
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Note 13: Other expenses

3= M dil

Service charges 70,80 F0H0
Legal and professional expenses 15.44 16,94
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 11.80 11,10
Rates and taxes 3.60 240
|Miscellaneous expenses 142 (L]
Total other expenses 103.06 102,74

(1) Payment te Auditors

Statutory audit fee 11.80 11,180
lTnl.\l payment to auditors 11.80 11,80

Note 14: Income tax expense

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

A1-Mar-21 A1 =Mt
Current tax 1.71 AR
Deferred tax E ’
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 1.71 ]

Reconcitiation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Ii’-‘ro!it,f (loss) before tax (505.18) (4069.84)

Income tax calculated at 25.168% (2019-20; 25.168%) (127.14) (118.25)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit . 128.85 121,50
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 1.71 3.0

The income tax charge has been provided considering the option of lower lax rates available under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as introducect by The
Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019,

Note 15: Earnings/{loss) per share

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] (506.89) (473.18)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 2,65,00,000 2,65,00,000

Basic earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of T 1 per share) [A/B] (0.02) (0.02)
Diluted earnings/ {loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/E] (0.02) (0.02)
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Note 16: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have laken place
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances

i Holding Company 2
Financial year ML S, Total
3 TEIL

Nature of transactions with Related Parties
Service charges expense 31-Mar-21 70.80 70.80
31-Mar-20 70.80 70.80
Outstanding balances
Receivables/ Payables 31-Mar-21 - -
31-Mar-20 - -

(iv) Terms & conditions
The transactions with related parties are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking into consideration
market conditions, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at the year-end are 2
Nil.

(v} The amount of transactions/balances as stated above are without giving effect to the Ind AS adjustments on
account of fair valuation/amortisation.

N/
b e N
S x
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Note 17; Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes total equity of the Company. The primary objective of the capital management is £ o
maximize shareholder value, The Company does not have significant borrowings,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in econemic conditions, The Company may resort &0
further issue of capital to fund expansion of business, The Company monitors capital structure through gearing ratio which at the end el
reporting period was as follows:

Non-current borrowings (note 8) 5861.08 54527
Trade payables (note 9) 11.80 TLER
Total debt 5872.88 5463.S97
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (nole 4(a}) (157.94)  (264.84)
Net debt (A) 5714.94 5199.4 13
Total equity (note 6 & note 7) 38013.82  38520.771
Total equily and net debt (B) 43728.76  43719.844)
Gearing ratio (A/B) 13% 124

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Note 18: Financial risk management

The Company's financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and trade payables. The Company’s financial assets are presently nominal axl
comprise of cash and bank balances, The Company's activities does not expose it to market risk and credit risk. The Company manages ils
liquidity through internal accruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company/ Fellow subsidiary companies.

Considering present state of business operations, the liguidity ratios are not relevant, The operations of the Company during early stages ol
business will be supporied by the Holding Company/Fellow subsidiary companies through loans or through equity infusion, as
appropriate. Borrowings shall mature as per terms mentioned in note 6(ii), all other financial liabilities shall mature within one year from
the reporting date,
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Note 19: Fair value measurements

(i) Financial instruments by category

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
o/ TP
F[\\TT ('[;:JI Amortised cost :\\]I (I)l",ll Amortisenil cost
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances - 276.83 - V77,04
Other financial assets - 0.62 - 0.22
Total financial assets - 277.45 - 377.506

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - 5861.08 - S452.17
Trade payables ' - 11.80 - 11.80
Total financial liabilities - 5872.88 - 55463.97

(ii) The liability component of compound financial instruments is carried in books based on discounted cash flows (refer note 6 & 8), The
carrying amount of remaining financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be at their fair values by the managgement,
due to their short-term nature.
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Note 20: Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Based on management analysis, there are no material commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020,

Note 21: Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises
Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Entesrprises
Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

T s S S s e V)

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting

year; as at the end of the year
(i) Principal amount &
(i) Interest due on above -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the -
appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible =
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 22: Global health pandemic from COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company has evaltaated the
impact of this pandemic on its business operations and financial position using internal and external sources of information, including economic
forecasts and estimates from market sources, and based on its review of current indicators of future economic conditions, there is no si gnificant
impact on carrying amount of the assets due to impairment and on its financial resulls for the year ended 31 March 2021. However, the impact
assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the imypact may
be different in future from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company will continue to momiitor any
material changes to future economic conditions.

Note 23: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 17 June 2021 subject to approval of share holders.

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhallg & Company For behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited

Sudhir Mallick Debajit{Bagchi Atul Aggarwal
Partner Director Director
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Date : 17 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Triveni Energy Systems Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triveni Energy Systems
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
on that date and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rule ‘hereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

HEAD OFFICE : B-17, Maharani Bagh, New Delhi - 110065



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.



e We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

e We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement

of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “ Annexure B”.




(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under
section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of
Section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to- the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Regn. No. 001111N
udhir Mallick
Partner

Membership No. 80051
UDIN: 2[0Q00<1 AAAAA P41<8

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021



Annexure A to Independent Auditors” Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under
the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members
of Triveni Energy Systems Limited on the financial statements as of and for the
year ended on March 31, 2021.

1. Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the provisions
of clauses (i)(a), (i)(b) & (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

2. Since the Company does not have any inventories, the'provisions of clause (ii) of

paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable
to the Company. '

3. According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the

Company has granted loan to company covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

(a) The terms and condition of grant of such loan are, in our opinion, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest has

regular as per stipulations.

(c) There is no amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

4. According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the

Company has not made any investment nor provided any guarantee or security.
The Company has complied with the provision of Section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, with respect to loan granted.

5. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions.of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

6. As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required

to maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.



7. (a) The Company has been regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and any other
statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of statutory dues
were in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no dues
of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues, which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

8. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government and has
not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

9. According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) nor any term loan was taken by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

10. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid /provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,

the provisions of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable.

12.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with related
parties and details of transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.




14. According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not
made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For ]J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 001111N

lﬂﬂ/ \ ’
ir Mallick

Partner _ :
Membership No. 80051

UDIN: 2168005 AAAAA PLISE

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021



Annexure B to Independent Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f)
of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
Energy Systems Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established an:
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. OQur audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the audstor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. '

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 001111N

Xm/\‘

Partner
Membership No. 80051
UDIN: 21080051 AAAAAPYISE

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(All antounts in ¥ thousands, unless otherivise stated)

Note No, 31-Mar-21 eMar20
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property 2 36928.08 3h')?ll.l1ﬁ|
Income tax assets (net) 3 3.56 A48
Total non-current assets 36931.64 A6931.56
Current assets
Financial assets
i.  Cash and cash equivalents 4 (a) 139.46 286.68)
ii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 (b) 200.00 .
iii. Loans 5 - 150,00
iv. Other financial assets 6 1.91 310
Total current assets 341.37 439.78)
Total assets 37273.01 37371.34
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 7 38500.00 3H500,00
Other equity 8 (1240.70) (1145,44)
Total equity 37259.30 37354.56
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.  Trade payables 9
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises = -
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.80 11.80
Other current liabilities 10 - 0.50
Income tax liabilities (net) 3 1.91 4,48
Total current liabilities 13.71 16,78
Total liabilities 13.71 16.78)
Total equity and liabilities 37273.01 37371.34

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's regisfration number : 001111N

v

udhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No, 80051

Place : NO' D ﬂ CU.P)

Date : 17 June 2021

Forand o

Suresh Taneja
Director
DIN: 00028332

Place : ND”\AR L\’ ¥

o)

half of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited

Atul Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 06875769

Place: [\ Q‘&\(U ,P.)




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(AN amounts in € thousamds, waless otherase stated)

Other income 11 7.60 17.81
Total income 7.60 17,81
Eixpenses

Other expenses 12 100.95 105,54}
Total expenses 100.95 105,34
Profit/(loss) before tax (93.35) (87.53)|
Tax expense

- Current tax 13 191 A48
- Deferred tax 13 - .
Total tax expense 1.91 4,48
Profit/(loss) for the year (95.26) (92.01)
Other comprehensive income

A (i) Items that will not be reclagsified to profit or loss - |
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - .
B (i) Items thatmay be reclassified to profit or loss - #
B (i) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - "
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - .
Total comprehensive income for the year (95.26) (92.01)}
Earnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥ 1 each

Basic 14 (0.00) (0.00)
Diluted 14 (0.00) (0.00)

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registrgtion number : 001111N

WL

Mallick
Partner
Membershi‘p No. 80051

Place : Nbl‘b n CU -P)

Date : 17 June 2021

Chartered
countant.) )
vl

For and on/béhalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited

uresh Taneja Atul Ag al
Director Director
DIN: 00028332 DIN: 06875769

Place: O\ C\j } ?‘) Place: \} Dk\&ﬂi QU ; P )




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31

stated)

(Al mnonnts in & tousands, unless otherwise

, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax (93.35) (87.51)
Adjustments for :

Interest income (7.60) (17.281)
Working capital adjustments :

Change in other liabilities (0.50) 0_ 50
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (101.45) (104.584)
Income tax (paid)/refund (4.56) (4.847)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (106.01) (109.=71)
Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks (200.00) 400 .00
Loan to Fellow subsidiary - (150.€)0)
Repayment of loan by Fellow subsidiary 150.00 .
Interest received 8.79 37 .09
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (41.21) 287" .09
Cash flows from financing activities - -
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (147.22) 17708
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 4(a)} 286.68 109.30
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 4(a)) 139.46 286,68

There are no changes in liabilities arising from financing activities during the year, including both changes from cash flows and ron:

cash changes.

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registraion number : 001111N

i,

Sudhir Mallick Atul Aggarwal
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN: 00028332 DIN: {}63?’5?69

Place : ND{DH CU p)

Date : 17 June 2021

e __,..::.:——-

\P_,A N

a7 |

| of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limite <l

Place : |\ G\\.&c\ L\’ y P) Place : é\cv\&_, P )



TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Staterrent of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All anraunds in & thousands, wnless otherwse stated )

A. liquity share capital

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31March 2019 38500.00
Movement during the year -
As at 31 March 2020 38500.00

* [Moverent during the year C
As al 31 March 2021 38500.00
B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Retained earni

(1053.43)

Total other equuity

Balance as at 31 March 2019 (1053.43)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (92.01) (92.01)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (92.01) (92.01)}
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (1145.44) (1145.44)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (95.26) (95.26)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (95.26) (95.26)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (1240.70) (1240.70)

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.CBhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registgation number : 001111N

Vi
S ir Mallick
Partner

Membershig; No. 80051

Place : MOID A CU"P)

Date: 17 June 2021

L+, ':"' 1 o
! /l/_\f:\‘
Of chartered \-

-~ ..|
=4 ﬁ.cmu-.:lar;‘._.J-r" )

For and on

esh Taneja

Director
DIN: 00028332

Place: N oS (U ) P)

half of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited

Atul Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 06875769

Place: N 5\&@\(\) .@)



TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Corporate information

Triveni Energy Systems Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100%% of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at 8 floor, Exporess
Trade Towers, 15-16, Sector 16A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201301.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, umiless
otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

(©)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Irdian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Nofes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(d)

(e)

(£)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there: are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from osther
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairrment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the rev-ised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not ex«<eed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognisecl for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as

investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and, where applicable, borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule II along with residual values of 5%.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding; the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third paarty,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be rece ived
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, urless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with. as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period (exce pt in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, whex'¢ an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

() Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
¢ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehemsive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
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*  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the as sets'
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOC,

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteriea for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its fina ncial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
 the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
o retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assurmes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i)

(i)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements ancl the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
e those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial Liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
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(1)

(k)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of finarcial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its finarcial

liabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FV7IT’L
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Finarcial

liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising: on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

*  Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designate=d as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

(iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance
with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Jotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(D

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusteci for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per s hare
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilaative
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that weould
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Nole 2: Investment property

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 36928.08 I69ZH,08
Additions -

Deletions - .
Closing gross carrying amount 36928.08 36924,00

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment =
Depreciation charge/impairment losses -
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment =
Net carrying amount 36928.08 369228,06)

(i) Description about Investment property
The Company’s investment properly consist of parcel of land at Dibai, District Bulandshahar, Uttar Pradesh, India.

(i) Amount recognised in stalement of profit and loss
There is no amount related to investment property which is recognised in statement of profit and loss,

(iii) Restrictions on realisability and contractual obligations
The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligations te either purchase, constru <t or
develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements,

(v} Fair value
The investment property owned by the Company is situated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings areas. The property was purchased in the year

2015-16 at the circle rate from the Holding Company. In view of slowdown in real estate and industrial activities, the fair value cannot be
determined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar properties (including size) in the vicinity of the subject property.

Note 3: Income tax balances

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current MNon- current Current Non-cu rrent

| Income tax assels

Tax refund receivable (net) - 3.56 - 348
- 3.56 - 3.48)
Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) 1.91 - 4.48 -
1.91 - 4,48 o

Note 4: Cash and bank balances

(a} Cash and cash equivalenls

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in current account 139.45 286,67
Cash on hand 0.01 0,01
Total cash and cash equivalents 139.46 286.63'

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in fixed deposit 200.00 -
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 200.00 =
Note 5: Loans

31-Mar-21 31-Mar

Current MNon- current g Non- current

Al amortised cost

Loan to related parties (refer note 15)
- Loans receivables considered good - Unsecured - -

Total loans ik -

rr/.
A
AP e
o) e
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Note 6: Other financial assets

31-Mar-21 J1-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current Non- cur=renl

At amortised cost

Accrued interest 191 - 310

Total other financial assets 1.91 - 3.10 .

Note 7: Equity share capital

31-Mar-21 131-Mar-20

Number of shares Amount Number of shares 1 Amsaunl
AUTHORISED
Equity shares of 2 1 each 5,00,00,000 50000.00 5,00,00,000 50043000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
| Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 3,85,00,000 38500.00 3,85,00,000 38500.00

(i) Movements in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2019 3,85,00,000 38500,00
Movement during the year : -
As at 31 March 2020 3,85,00,000 38500.00
Movement during the year & -
As at 31 March 2021 3,85,00,000 38500.00]

(i} Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of 2 1/- per share. The holder of equity shares is enlitled to one vote per share, The
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equily shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after meet ing all
liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding,

(iiii) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

31-Mar-21 31-Mai-20

Number of shares Wi holding - Number of shares Yoholding

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 3,85,00,000 100% 3,85,00,000 100%

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Number of shares YWiholding Number of shares

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 3,85,00,000 100% 3,85,00,000 100%
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Note 8: Other equity

Retained earnings (1240.70) {11455,44)
Total other equily (1240.70) (11455,44)

(i) Retained earnings

Opening balance (1145.44) (10553,43)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (95.26) (922.01)
Closing balance (1240.70) (11455 44)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity shareholders in accordance witls the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Note 9: Trade payables

31-Mar-21

Current Non= currenl Current Non- cur‘rent
Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enlerprises and
small enterprises (refer note 20) ) i

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than :
. = : 11.80 > 11.80
micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables 11.80

Note 10: Other liabilities

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current Non-current
Statutory remittances - - 0.50 -
Total other liabilities - - 0.50 “|

Note 11: Other income

Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 1.91 14,3|‘i|

Interest income from loans (at amortised cost) 5.69 345

Total other income 7.60 17.81

MNote 12: Other expenses

Service charges 70.80 70.80
Legal and professional expenses 13.94 1947
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 11.80 11.80
Rates and taxes 3.00 240
Miscellaneous expenses 141 0.8
Total other expenses 100.95 10534
(i) Payment to Auditors

Statutory audit fee 11,80 11.80)

|Total payment to auditors 11.80 ll.Bﬂl
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Note 13: Income tax expense

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Current tax 19 4448
Deferred tax * "
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 1.91 ""“d

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Profit/ (loss) before tax (93.35) (B72.53)
Income tax calculated at 25.168% (2019-20: 25.168%) (23.50)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 2541
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 1.91

The income tax charge has been provided considering the option of lower tax rates available under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as

introduced by The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019.

Note 14: Earnings/(loss) per share

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] (95.26)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 3,85,00,000

Basic earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of 21 per share) [A/B] (0.00)
Diluted earnings, (loss) per equity share (face value of 2 1 per share) [A/B] (0.00)
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Note 15 Related party transactions

(f)  Related parties where control exists
() Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(i} Related parties with whom transactions have taken place
(a) Holding Company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(b) Fellow Subsidiary
Triveni Sugar Limited (TSL)
(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances

Fellow

Haolding Company

Financial year UL,

Nature of transactions

Service charges expense 31-Mar-21 70.80 W 70.80
31-Mar-20 70,80 - 70.80
Interest income 31-Mar-21 - 5.69 5.69
31-Mar-20 - 345 3.45
Loan given 31-Mar-21 - - -
31-Mar-20 - 150.00 150.00
Repayment of loan given 31-Mar-21 - 150,00 150.00
31-Mar-20 - - .

Outstanding balances

Receivablos 31-Mar-21 - - -
31-Mar-20 - 153.11 153.11

Payables 31-Mar-21 - - -
31-Mar-20 - - -

{iv) Terms & condilions
(a) Loan to Fellow subsidiary was given at normal commercial terms & conditions at prevailing market rate of interest,
(b) Transactions with related parties, including service charges, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking
into consideration market conditions, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof.
{¢) The outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. The Company has not
recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties.
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MNote 16: Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes total equity of the Company. The primary objective of the capital management i o
maximize shareholder value. The Company does not have borrowings.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, The Company may reso =1 o
further issue of capital to fund expansion of business, The Company monitors capital structure through gearing ratio which at the en«l of
reporting period was as follows:

Trade payables (note 9) 11.80 17180
Total debt 11.80 17080
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 4(a)) (139.46) (28€,08)
Net debt (A) - :

Total equity (note 7 & note 8) 37259.30 3735456
Total equity and net debt (B) 37259.30 37354,506
Gearing ratio (A/B) . 0.00% 0-00%,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

MNote 17: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of trade payables, The Company’s financial assets are presently nominal and comprise of cashy and
bank balances. The Company's activities does not expose it to market risk and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity through intesrnal
accruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company/ Fellow subsidiary companies.

Considering present state of business operations, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. The operations of the Company during early stag«s of
business will be supported by the Holding Company/Fellow subsidiary companies through loans or through equity infusion, as appropx-iate.
All financial liabilities shall mature within one year {rom the reporting date.
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Note 18: Fair value measurements

(i)  Financial instruments by category

31-Mar-21 J=Mar-220

FNTPL/ Amortised FVTPL/ Aot ised
FNTOC] cost VTOCI cout

Financial assels

Cash and bank balances - 339.46 - 286,68
Lesrs - - . 150,00
Other financial assets - 1.91 - 310
Total financial assets - 341.37 - 439.78

Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 11.80 . 11,80

Total financial liabilities » - 11.80 - 11.80

(i) The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements approximate
their fair values due to their short-term nature.

/quw YIS‘ "“\
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Note 19: Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Based on management analysis, there are no material commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 20021 and 31
March 2020.

Note 20: Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises
Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Eénterprises
Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year; as at the end of the year
(i) Principal amount *
(i) Interest due on above - -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along, with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the -
appointed day during each accounting, year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small =
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when
the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a = ~
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 21: Global health pandemic from COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company has evaluated the
impact of this pandemic on its business operations and financial position using internal and external sources of information, includin g economic
forecasts and estimates from market sources, and based on its review of current indicators of future economic conditions, there is no significant
impact on carrying amount of the assets due to impairment and on its financial results for the year ended 31 March 2021, However, the impact
assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may
be different in future from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements, The Company will continue to monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions.

Note 22: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 17 June 2021 subject to approval of sharcholders.

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company For and on beHalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limitec

Chartered Accountan
Firm's registration nuniper : 001111N
resh Taneja Atul Aggarwal

T Mallick
Partner Director Director

Membershi{r No. 80051 DIN: 00028332 DIN: 06875769

Place:No pn Cu{)) Place : MQ\\C&O\Q\\ 'p) Place: £~y Q\AG‘\ C'.J . OQ

Date : 17 June 2021




Chitresh Gupta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triveni Entertainment Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled cur
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

< Head Office : U-119A, Shakarpur, New Delhi-110092, Mobile : 99103 67918
Branch Office : LG-CS-24 B, Ansal Plaza (Opp. Dabur India Ltd.), Vaishali, Ghaziabad, U.P., Pin - 201010, NCR, India
Phone: +91- 120 - 4121942, E-mail: chitresh.gupta@gstexperts.net, gupta_chitresh@yahoo.in




Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management. '

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.,

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”.

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the Act,
in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid/provided any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of Section
197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2021 on its financial
position in its financial statements - refer note 21 to the financial statements.




ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 017079N

cp ke
CA Chitresh Gupta /

Partner
M. No. 098247
UDIN: 21098247AAAAUV4634

Place: Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021




Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of Triveni Entertainment Limited on the financial statements as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

2. The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loan to a company
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act, in respect of which:
(a) The terms and condition of the grant of such loan are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to
the Company’s interest.
(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments
or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations.
(c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at year-end.

4. The Company has not made any investment nor provided any guarantee or security. In respect of loans
granted provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, where applicable, have been complied with.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

6. The Company is not required to maintain any cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.

7. (a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax with the
appropriate authority. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company’s
operation did not give rise to any dues on account of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues. There are no undisputed statutory dues amounts outstanding and payable
as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Income-Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and Goods and Services Tax as at
March 31, 2021 on account of any dispute except as under:

Name of Statute Nature Assessment Amount in Rs.| Forum where Dispute is [
of Dues Year pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 1993-94 2,83,065 Assessing Officer

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 1999-00 R334 Assessing Officer

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2001-02 46,203 Assessing Officer

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2001-02 1,13,508 Assessing Officer

8. The Company has not taken any loan or borrowing from Financial Institutions, Banks and Government and
has not issued any debenture. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

9. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is

o,
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance
with generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration Number: 017079N

CA Chitresh Gupta
Partner

M. No. 098247
UDIN: 21098247 AAAAUV4634

Place: Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni Entertainment Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
haye-a-material effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
“occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 017079N

CLC
CA Chitresh Gupta
Partner

M. No. 098247
UDIN: 21098247AAAAUV4634

Place: Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(Al aeioazts i & Hhowsands, wiless oflermise stuted)

Note No. 31-Mar-21 3i-Mar-20
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property 2 38336.70 38336.70
Income tax assets (net) 3 112.93 115.22
Total non-current assets 38449.63 38451,92
Current assets
Financial assets
i. Cash and cash equivalents 4(a) 213.36 266.28]
ii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4(b) 600.00 -
iii. Loans 5 - 600.00
iv. Other financial assets 6 6.45 98.20)
Total current assets 519.81 - 964.48]
Total assets 39269.44 39416.40
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 7 41700.00 41700.00
Other equity 8 (2445.32) (2298.86),
Total equity 39254.68 39401.14]
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i, Trade payables 9
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - E
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14.76 14.76
Other current liabilities 10 - 0.50
Total current liabilities 14,76 15.26|
Total liabilities 14.76 15.26|
Total equity and liabilities 39269.44 39416.40
The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For ind on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079

"KL

o=

Chitresh Gupta
Partner

Memberghip Np. 98247
Place : P

Date : 18 June 2021

Debajit Bagchi Atul Aggarwal
Director

DIN: 06875769

s Noicla(UP)




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in & Housands, unless otlwranise stated)

Other income 11

29.45

52.74/

Total income

29.45

52,74

Expenses
Other expenses 12

175.91

177.11

Total expenses

175.91

177.11

Profil/(loss) before tax

(146.46)

(124.37)

Tax expense:
- Current tax 13
- Deferred tax 13

Total tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

A (i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

|B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
B (ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

(146.46)

(124.37)

Earnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥ 10 each
Basic 14
Diluted 14

(0.04)

(0.04):

(0.03)
(0.03)

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates Fot and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079

Partner v
Membership Mo, 98247

Place 8 :P

Date : 18 June 2021

DIN: 0687576

Place : NO|

rwal

da(vP)




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in ¥ thousands, unless otherise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2019 41700.00

Movement during the year -
As at 31 March 2020 41700.00
Movement during the year E
As at 31 March 2021 41700.00

B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus

- : ‘Total other equity
Retained earnings

Balance as at 31 March 2019 (2174.49) (2174.49)
Profit/ (loss) for the year . (124.37) (124.37)]
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (124.37) (124.37)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (2298.86) (2298.86)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (146.46) (146.46)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (146.46) (146.46)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (2445.32) (2445.32)

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number : 017079N

Chitresh Gupta — 7
Partner
Membership No. 98247

Place : a@,f

Debajit Bagchi Atul Aggarwal
Director Director
DIN: 06875769

e Nl (10)

Date : 18 June 2021




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al wmounts in ¥ thousands, unless otherivise stated)

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) before tax (146.46) (124.37)
Adjustments for :

Interest income (29.45) (52.74)
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables - (2.38)

Change in other liabilities (0.50) 0.50
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (176.41) (178.99)
Income tax (paid)/refund 2.54 (1.36)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (173.87) (180.35)

Cash flows from investing activities

Loan to Fellow subsidiaries : - (200.00)
Repayments of loan by Fellow subsidiaries 600.00 -
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks (600.00) 300.00
Interest received 120.95 15.06
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities 120.95 115.06
Cash flows from financing activities - -
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (52.92) (65.29)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 4 (a)) 266.28 331.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 4 (a)) 213.36 266.28|

There are no changes in liabilities arising from financing activities during the year, including both changes from cash flows and non-cash changes.
The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N

COK LA
itresh Gupta B Debajit|\Bagchi Atul Aggarwal

Partner Director Director
Membership No. 98247 DIN : 02561320 DIN: 0687576

Place do. LU@ Place ; Q}o fd&LU‘w




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Corporate information

Triveni Entertainment Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at House no. 100,
Street no. 2, Uttranchal enclave, Kamalpur, Burari, Delhi - 110084.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation and presentation
(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(if) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has
ascertained ils operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

(b) Revenue recognition
The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

(c) Leases
The Company’s lease consists of short term lease for property. Lease payments for such property are
recognised as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
i of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(e)

(£)

estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been reco gnised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and, where applicable, borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised,

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated |




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(g) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(B)

(i)

(iif)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period (except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

(iv) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

(h) Financial assets

(i)

(i)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

»  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
in or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

iii) Impairment of financial assets
1%

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i)

(if)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(k)

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVIPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVIPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

» Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting perieds. The
catrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

(iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial lability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows aating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(1)

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance
with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All anronnts in € thousands, wiless officrwise stated)

Note Z: Investment property

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 38336.70 38336.70
Additions = -
Deletions E -
Closing gross carrying amount 38336.70 38336.70|
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment - -
Depreciation charge/impairment losses = -
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment - g
Net carrying amount 38336.70 38336.70)

(i) Description about investment property
The Company's investment property consist of parcel of land at Dibai, District Bulandshahar, Uttar Pradesh, India.

(if) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
There is no amount related to investment property which is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Restrictions on realisability and contractual obligations
The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligations to either purchase, construct or
develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

(iv) Fair value

The investment property owned by the Company is situated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings areas. The property was purchased in the year
2015-16 at the circle rate from the Holding Company. In view of slowdown in real estate and industrial activities, the fair value cannot be
determined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar properties (including size) in the vicinity of the subject property.

MNote 3: Income tax balances

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non= current Current Non- current
Income tax assets
Tax refund receivable (net) - 112,93 - 115.22

- 112.93 - 115.22}

Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) . - - E
Note 4: Cash and bank balances
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
At amortised cost
Balance with banks in current account 21332 266.24
Cash on hand 0.04 0.04]
Total cash and cash equivalents 213.36 266.28|
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
At amortised cost
Balance with bank in fixed deposit 600.00 -
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 600.00 -




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the Finaneial Statements (or the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amonnts in T Hhonsasds, uniess otherwise stated)

Note 5: Loans

Current Non- current 2 Non- current

At amortised cost

Loan to related parties (refer note 15)
- Loans receivables considered good - Unsecured - - 600.00 -

Total loans - - 600,00 -

Note 6; Other financial assets

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current Non- current

At amortised cost

Acecrued interest 6.45 - 98,20 -

Total other financial assets 6.45 - 98.20 |

Note 7: Equity share capital

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

AUTHORISED
Equity shares of Z 10/- each 43050.00 43,05,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 41,70,000 41700.00

(i} Movements in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2019 41,70,000 41700,00]
Movement during the year - |
As at 31 March 2020 41,70,000 41700.00]
Movement during the year - -
|As at 31 March 2021 41,70,000 41700.00}

(ii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of ¥ 10/- per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after meeting
all liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding,

(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Number of shares ¥ holding Numberof shares o holding

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 41,70,000 100% 41,70,000 100%

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31-Mar-21 " 31-Mar-20

Number of shares % holding  Number of shares YYu holding

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) 41,70,000 100% 41,70,000 100%

FRN : 017079N




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year encled March 31, 2021

(Al amonnds in € thousands, wiless oflwrans

Note 8: Other equity
Retained earnings (2445.32) (2298.86)
Total other equity (2445.32) (2298.86)

(i) Retained earnings

Opening balance (2298.86) (2174.49)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (146.46) (124.37)
Closing balance (2445.32) (2298.86)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed 1o its equity shareholders in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 9: Trade payables

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current Non- ctirrent

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (refer note 22)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises e ) L )

Total trade payables 14.76 - 14.76 -

Note 10: Other liabilities

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Current Non-= current Current Non- current
Stalutory remittances - - 0.50 -
‘Total other liabilities - - 0.50 -

Note 11: Other income

Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 6.45 10.28
Interest income from loans (at amortised cost) 22.75 4246
Interest income on income tax refund 0.25 -
Total other income 29.45 52.74]

Note 12: Other expenses

Rent expense (refer note 19) 66.00 55.00]
Service charges 70.80 70.80
Legal and professional expenses 15.44 24.78|
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 14.75 14.75
Rates and taxes 3.00 4.20)
Miscellaneous expenses 5.92 7.58)
Total other expenses 175.91 177.11

(i) Payment to Auditors

Statutory audit fee 14.75 14,75|

Total payment to auditors 14.75 14.75)

[ |
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Mates to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

=

(All amountsin 3

tHhonsands, wiless otherise sl

Note 13: Income tax expense

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current tax - i
Deferred tax 7 b

Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss - 2

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Profit/ (loss) before tax (146.46) (124.37)
Income tax calculated at 25.168% (2019-20: 25.168%) (36.86) (31.30)
Loss carried forward to future years for which no deferred tax asset created clue to lack of certainty 36.86 31.30
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss - -

Note 14: Earnings/(loss) per share

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] (146.46)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS B] 41,70,000

Basic earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of Z 10 per share) [A/ B] (0.04) (0.03)
Diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 10 per share) [A/B] (0.04) (0.03)




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al anionnts in & thousands, wnless other

se shated)
Note 15: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(if) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place
(a) Holding Company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)
(b) Fellow Subsidiaries
Triveni Industries Limited (TIL)
Triveni Sugar Limited (TSL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries

Financial year

Nature of transactions with Related Parties

Service charges expense 31-Mar-21 70.80 - - 70.80
31-Mar-20 70.80 - - 70.80

Interest income 31-Mar-21 B 18.96 3.79 22,75
31-Mar-20 - 36.32 6.14 42,46

Loan given 31-Mar-21 - - - -
31-Mar-20 - 100.00 100.00 200.00

Repayment of loan given 31-Mar-21 - 500.00 100,00 600.00
31-Mar-20 - & » "

Outstanding balances

Receivable 31-Mar-21 - - - -

31-Mar-20 E 592.67 105.52 698.20

(iv) Terms & conditions

(a) Loan to Fellow subsidiaries were given at normal commercial terms & conditions at prevailing market rate of interest.
(b) Transactions with related parties, including service charges, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking into
consideration market conditions, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof.




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amomnts in T thousands, untess otlerwise stated)

Note 16: Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes total equity of the Company. The primary objective of the capital management is to
maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. The Company may resort to further
issue of capital to fund expansion of business. The Company monitors capital structure through gearing ratio which at the end of reporting period
was as follows:

R e T e )

Trade payables (note 9) 14.76 14.76
Total debt 14.76 14.76
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 4(a)) (213.36) (266.28)
Net debt (A) - "

Total equity (note 7 & 8) 39254.68 39401.14
Total equity and net debt (B) 39254.68 3940114
Gearing ratio (A/B) 0% 0%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Note 17: Financial risk management

The Company's financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise of cash and bank balances. The Company's
activities does not expose it to market risk and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity through internal accruals and capital infusion from
the Holding Company.

Considering present state of business operations, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. The operations of the Company have been from time to time
been supported by the Holding Company through loans or through equity infusion, as appropriate, All financial liabilities shall mature within one
year from the reporting date.
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Nates to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amaunts in ¥ thousands, uniess othisrwise staled)
Note 18 : Fair value measurements

(i)  Financial instruments by category

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
FVTPL/ Amortised EVTPL/ Amortised
FVTOCI cost ENTOCI cost
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances - 813.36 - 266.28
Loans - - - 600.00
Other financial assets - 6.45 - 98.20
Total financial assets - 819.81 - 964.48

Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 14.76 - 14.76

Total financial liabilities - 14.76 - 14.76

(if) The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements
approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature.
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amrowrts in £ thansads,

s otfieroise stafed)

Note 19: Leases

During the year, the Company has taken office premises under lease for a period of eleven months. There is no contingent rent, sublease payments or
restriction imposed in the lease agreement.

Rent expense - short term leases (refer note 12)

Total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 March 2021 is 2 66 thousand (31 March 2020: 2 55 thousand).

Commitment for short term lease as at 31 March 2021 is 2 49,50 thousand.

Note 20: Commitments
Based on management analysis, there are no material commitments as at 31 March 2021 and as at 31 March 2020,

Note 21: Contingent liabilities and contingent assels
Contingent liabilities

J1-Mar-21 F1=Mar-20

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (excluding mlerest and penally):
Income tax 448.11 44811

Contingent assets
Based on management analysis, there are no material contingent assets as at 31 March 2021 and as at 31 March 2020,

Note 22: Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting

year; as at the end of the year
(i) Principal amount - -
(if) Interest due on above - -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during - -
each accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium _
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible = =
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 23; Global health pandemic from COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company has evaluated the impact of
this pandemic on its business operations and financial position using internal and external sources of information, including economic forecasts and
estimates from market sources, and based on its review of current indicators of future economic conditions, there is no significant impact on carrying
amount of the assets due to impairment and on its financial resulls for the year ended 31 March 2021, However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a
continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different in future from that
estimated as al the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company will continue to moniler any material changes to fulure economic
conditions.

Note 24; Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 18 June 2021 subject to approval of shareholders.

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates Fora 1 behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited
Chartered Accountants -~
Firm's registration number : 01

CQ/CC}G LW
Chitresh Gupta

Partner

Membership 47
Place : eﬁ?

Date : 18 June 2021

Debajit Bafchi Atul Agpafwal
Director Director

wda(0f) = Noda (UP)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Triveni Industries Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triveni Industries Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
on that date and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules t' ~reunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

HEAD OFFICE : B-17, Maharani Bagh, New Delhi - 110065



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
- Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

" e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. -

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to’

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept b
B prop q Y pt-oy
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
i “fer to our separate Report in “ Annexure B”.




(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under
section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of
Section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us: '

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 001111N

/Iu

udhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

UDIN: 2| 680051 AAAAAR 2289

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021



Annexure A to Independent Auditors” Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under
the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members
of Triveni Industries Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year
ended on March 31, 2021.-

1.

Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the
provisions of clauses (i)(a), (i)(b) & (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (i)
of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clauses (iii) (a), (iii) (b) & (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the
current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee
or security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the
current year. '

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections
73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not
required to maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013.

(@) The Company has been regular in depositing with the appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Tnsurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess
and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in
respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no
dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory
dues, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government
and has not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii)
of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) nor any term loan was taken by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with
related parties and details of transactions with the related parties have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has
not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debenture during the year.

Accordj_ﬁg to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

=



16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 001111N

[ e li-
udhir Mallick

Partner
Membership No. 80051
UDIN: 2 [5800SIARAAAR 2281

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f)
of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibilities include the .design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.




Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.




Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. QO1111IN

Ep—— / I,
udhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051
UDIN: 216800 STAAAAAR 228

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021



TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in € thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 31-Mar-21 A1 Mira20
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Inwstment property 2 18628.65 17533,00
Tolal non-current assets 18628.65 17533.00
Current assets
Finincial assets
i, Cash and cash equivalents 3 (a) 148.90 2166.79)
i Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 (b) 200.00 .
i Other financial assets 4 1.91 -
‘Toial current assets 350.81 2166,79
Tolal assets 18979.46 19699.79
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 5 20050.00 20050.00
Other equity 6 (1082.34) (959.92)
Tolal equity 18967.66 19090.08
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Borrowings 7 - 500,00
| ii. Trade payables 8
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
| (b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.80 1554
iii. Other financial liabilities 9 - 92,67
Other current liabilities 10 = 1.50
Total current liabilities 11.80 609.70
Total liabilities 11.80 609.70}
Toial equity and liabilities 18979.46 19699]9]
The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements
l
' As per our report of even date attached
|]' For].C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limi ted
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registrqtion number : 001111N
- i
@'k Debajit Bagchi Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Directqr Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 1320 DIN : 00296589 ,
Piace:'\lo“bn (U\p) Place : D’DLQCU P) Place : ND;M é i E)

| Date : 17 June 2021




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

CA amoants i 2 thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Other income 11 191
Total income 1.91 .
| Expenses
| Finance cosls 12 18.96 36,52
Other expenses 13 105.37 449,36
Total expenses 124.33 A85.08
| Profit/(loss) before tax (122.42) (485.08)
! Tax expense 14 - -
| TProfit/(loss) for the year (122.42) (485.08)
Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss - .
B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
B (ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit & loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax . .
Total comprehensive income for the year (122.42) (485.68)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥ 1 each
Basic 15 (0.01) (1.00)
Diluted 15 (0.01) (1.00)

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number : 001111N

P\

Sudhir Mallick Debajil
Partner Directo
Membership MNo. 80051 DIN :

Place : N D) Dp (U‘P) Place :

Date: 17 June 2021

Bagchi

olacvP)

Satvinder Singh Walia
Director
DIN : 00296589

Mo

Place:

~

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amonnts in ¥ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

m

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) before tax (122.42) (AH5,6H)
Adjustments for ;

Interest income (1.91) .

Finance costs 18.96 36,32
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables (3.74) 1.77

Change in other liablities (1.50) 1,50
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (110.61) (446.09)
Income tax (paid)/refund = 3
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (110.61) (446.09)

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks (200.00) ’
Purchase of investment property (1095.65) (17533.00
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (1295.65) (17533.00)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity share captal - 2000000
Proceeds from borrowings from Fellow subsidiary - 100,00
Repayments of borrowings to Fellow subsidiary (500.00) -
Interest paid (111.63) (3.64)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities (611.63) 20096.36
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2017.89) 2117.27
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year [refer note 3(a)] 2166.79 49,52
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [refer note 3(a)] 148.90 2166.79|

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activites:

Bﬁxrnwings Interest payable
Balance as at 31 March 2019 400.00 59.99
Cash flows 100.00 (3.64)
Finance costs accruals - 36.32
Balance as at 31 March 2020 500.00 92.67
Cash flows (500.00) (111.63)
Finance costs accruals - 18.96
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - -

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 001111N

W "4
\@llick Debajif Bagchi Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Direct: Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 02561320 DIN : 00296589

Place:ﬂ(}‘“)n (U ) Place : Np:dﬁ()[)f) ' Place: N/pI

Date : 17 June 2021




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Staterment of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
(A amends in 3 thousands, unless otherwise stafed)

A, quity share capital
Equity shares of 21 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Asat 31 March 2019 50.00
Issued during the year 20000.00
As at 31 March 2020 20050.00
Movement during the year #
As at 31 March 2021 20050.00
B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus \ 3
: Fotal other s ity

Retained earnings

Balance as at 31 March 2019 (474.24) (474.24)
Profit/ {loss) for the year (485.68) (185.68)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax # i
Total comprehensive income for the year (485.68) (485.68)|
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (959.92) (959.92)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (122.42) (122.42)|
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax # "
Total comprehensive income for the year (122.42) (122.42)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (1082.34) (1082.34)

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registratipn number : 001111N
\ \v

»>

o ¥
N
Sudhir Mallick Debajit Bagchi Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Directo Director
Membership No, 80051 DIN : 02561320 DIN : 00296589

Place : NO“)“ l_\" ) Place : NDI-DL& CUP_) Place : NDID£4 s T P)

Date : 17 June 2021




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Corporate information
"Triveni Industries Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and donwiciled
in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of equity share

capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at Deoband, Di strict-
Saharanpur, Uttar Pradesh - 247554,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
firancial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, winless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation and presentation
(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standard s (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Endian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services,

(iil) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

(b) Revenue recognition
The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that assel's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

(c) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

(e)

()

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances inelicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the armount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that rexflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which thesre are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
agsels or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impai rment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. Whien an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and, where applicable, borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(g)

(h)

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated wiseful
lives as stated in Schedule II along with residual values of 5%.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligration,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognisexd as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surroundirg the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(i) A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period (except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made).

(iii) A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

(iv) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Financial assets
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(i) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business mod «! for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measuresment
calegories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amoxtised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest iracome
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI,

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected cred it loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assames a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(i) Classification
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
__subsequent accounting periods.
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(ii)

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transeaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVIPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arisitg on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

* Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designa ted as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

(iii) Derecognition

(iv)

Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in

equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments,

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s

obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial liability.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

N ales to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

()

(k)

Q)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet w~here
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to ssettle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable wight
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of bus®Eness
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted forr the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregatec.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on hand, ba lance
with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and. cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(AN amonnts i & thowsands, wrdess otlereotse staded)

Note 2: Investment property

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 17533.00 .
Additions 1095.65 175233,00
Deletions - -
Closing gross carrying amount 18628.65 175543,00

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment o #
Depreciation charge/ impairment losses 4 '
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment = .
Net carrying amount 18628.65 175233,00

(i) Description about investment property
The Company’s investment property consist of parcel of land at Digrauli, District Sharanpur, Uttar Pradesh, India.

(i) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
There is no amount related Lo investment property which is recognised in statement of profit and loss,

(iii) Restrictions on realisability and contractual obligations
The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and it is under no contractual obligations to either purchase,
construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

(iv) Fair value

The investment property owned by the Company is situated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings areas. The property was purchased in the
year 2019-20 at the circle rate from the Holding Company. In view of slowdown in real estate and industrial activities, the fair value cannot
be determined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar properties (including size) in the vicinity of the subject property.

Note 3: Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost
Balance with bank in current account 148.90 2166.79
Total cash and cash equivalents 148.90 27166.79)

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in fixed deposit 200.00 .

Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 200.00 il

Note 4: Other financial assets

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 .

Current Non- current Current Non-current

At amortised cost

Interest accrued on bank deposits 191 = = 4

Total other financial assets 1.91 B - -




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in T thousands, unless etheroise stited)

Note 5: Equity share capital

31-Mar-21

Number of

Amount
shares

AUTHORISED

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 2,60,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY FAID UP

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 2,00,50,000 20050.00

31-Mar-20

Number of
shares

Am st

2,60,00,000

2,00,50,000 200550.00

(i) Movements in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2019 50,000
Issued during the year 2,00,00,000
As at 31 March 2020 2,00,50,000 200 50.00|
Movement during the year = |
As at 31 March 2021 2,00,50,000 NDSU.I](II

(ii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of ¥ 1/- per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the

approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company,. after

meeting all liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

31-Mar-21

Number of

s % holding
shares

31-Mar-20

Number o
shares

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding

2,00,50,000 100%
Company)

2,00,50,000 100%

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31-Mar-21
Number of
shares

Yy holding

31-Mar-20
Number of

fate Y halding

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding

Company) 2,00,50,000 100% 2,00,50,000 100%
Note 6: Other equity

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Retained earnings (1082.34) (959.92)
Total other equity (1082.34) (959.92)

(i) Retained earnings

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Opening balance (959.92) (474.24)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (122.42) (485.68)
Closing balance (1082.34) (959.92)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity shareholders in accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al mmountds in & thousands, wiless otheroise stated)

Note 7: Current borrowings

Unsecured- at amortised cost
Repayable on demand
- Loan from related party (refer note 16) = 590.00

Total current borrowings - 5410,00|

(i) The weighted average effective interest rate on loan is 8% per annum.

Note 8: Trade payables

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current Non= cue rrenl

Trade payables (at amortised cost)
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (refer note 21)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

. . : 11.80 - 15.54
micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables 11.80 - 15.54 -

Note 9: Other financial liabilities

31-Mar-21 ,31-Mar-20

Current Non- current . Current Non-current
At amortised cost

Accrued interest - - 92.67

Total other financial liabilities - - 92.67

Note 10: Other liabilities

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Current Non- current Current Non- c urrent
Statutory remittances - - 1.50 .
Total other liabilities - - 1.50 -

Note 11 : Other income

Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 1.91

Total other income 1.91

Note 12: Finance costs

Interest on borrowings 18.96 36.32

Total finance costs 18.96 36.32




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MNates to the Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

(Al amownts in £ thousands, wnless olfierse stated)

Note 13: Other expenses

Service charges 70.80 080
Legal and professional expenses 17.48 A2
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 11,80 1180
Rates and taxes 3.80 32220
Miscellaneous expenses 1.49 232
Total other expenses 105.37 419,30

(i) Payment to Auditors

Statutory audit fee 11.80 “11.50
Total payment to auditors 11.80 = § LBUI

Note 14: Income tax expense

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Current tax -
Deferred tax .

Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss b

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Profit/ (loss) before tax (122.42) (4-85,68)
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (2019-20 : 25.168%) (30.81) (122.24)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 30.81 122,24
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss !

Note 15: Earnings/(loss) per share

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] (122.42) (485.68)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 2,00,50,000 4,87,158
Basic earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/B] (0.01) (1.00)
Diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of 1 per share) [A/B] (0.01) (1.00)




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
CAI amtounte (i € thousands, unless othertise stated)

Note 16: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) (TEIL)

(i) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place
() Holding Company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)
(b) Fellow Subsidiary
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances

Holding Company.

Fellow 5
- T'otal

Financial year

Nature of transactions with Related Parties

Service charges expense 31-Mar-21 70.80 - T0.80
31-Mar-20 70.80 - 7080
Issue of equity share capital 31-Mar-21 - - .
31-Mar-20 20000.00 » 20000000
Purchase of investment property 31-Mar-21 - e .
31-Mar-20 17533.00 ¥ 17533.00
Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf 31-Mar-21 (176.00) - (176.00)
of party (net of expenses incurred by party on 31-Mar-20 (321.00) - (321.00)

behalf of the Company) on reimbursable basis

Interest expense 31-Mar-21 - 18.96 18.96
31-Mar-20 E 36.32 36.32

Loan taken 31-Mar-21 = - -
31-Mar-20 - 100.00 200.00

Repayment of loan taken 31-Mar-21 - 500.00 500.00
31-Mar-20 - - -

Qutstanding balances

Payable 31-Mar-21 4 " a

31-Mar-20 - 592,67 592.67

(iv) Terms & conditions
(a) Loans from Fellow subsidiary was taken at normal commercial terms & conditions at prevailing market rate of interest.
(b) Transactions with related parties, including service charges, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking into
consideration market conditions, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof, All other transactions were made on normal
commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements [or the year ended March 31, 2021
(ANl gmounts in 2 thousands, unless otherivise stated)

Note 17: Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes total equity of the Company. The primary objective of the capital
management is to maximize shareholder value. The Company does not have borrowings.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. The Company
may resort to further issue of capital to fund expansion of business. The Company monitors capital structure through giearing
ratio which at the end of reporting period was as follows:

B e e T T T}

Current borrowings (note 7) - 500.00
Trade payables (note 8) 11.80 15.54
Other financial liabilities (note 9) - 92,67
Total debt 11.80 608.20
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 3(a)) (148.90) (2166,79)
Net debt (A) - -
Total equity (note 5 & note 6) 18967.66 29090.08}
Total equity and net debt (B) 18967.66 A9090.08
Gearing ratio (A/B) 0% 0%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 20271 and 31
March 2020.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Note 18: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise of cash and bank
balances. The Company's activities does not expose it to market risk and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity
through internal accruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company /Eellow subsidiary companies.

Considering present state of business operations, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. The operations of the Company during
early stages of business will be supported by the Holding Company/ Fellow subsidiary companies through loans or through
equity infusion, as appropriate. All financial liabilities shall mature within one year from the reporting date.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amornits in £ thousands, unless otherwise skated)

Note 19: Fair value measurements

(i) Financial instruments by category

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Amortised

Amork ised cost

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances - 348,90 - 216679
Other financial assets - 1.91 - -
Total financial assets - 350.81 - 2166,79

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - - 500.00
Trade payables - 11.80 - 15,54
Other financial liabilities - - - 92,67
Total financial liabilities - 11.80 - 608,21

(i) The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in thee financial
statements approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature.

—
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(AL amounts in € thowsamnds, unless otherwise slated)

Note 20: Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Based on management analysis, there are no malerial commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 2021 an=|
31 March 2020.

Note 21: Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises
Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Mediumn
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon
each accounting year; as at the end of the year

(i) Principal amount - -
(ii) Interest due on above = -

remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the - -
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under = -
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 22: Global health pandemic from COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company has
evaluated the impact of this pandemic on its business operations and financial position using internal and external sources ol
information, including economic forecasts and estimates from market sources, and based on its review of current indicators of future
economic conditions, there is no significant impact on carrying amount of the assets due to impairment and on its financial results for
the year ended 31 March 2021. However, the impacl assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associay led
with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different in future from that estimated as at the date of approval of
these financial statements, The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Note 23: Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 17 June 2021 subject to approval of
shareholders.

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company Forand on behalf of ghe Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration gumber : 001111N

*q

\ —
um Debajit Bagchi Satvinder Singh Walia

ariner Direct Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN:

Place : No‘ DA C]}p) Place :

Date : 17 June 2021




J. C. BHALLA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

BRANCH OFFICE : B-5, SECTOR-6, NOIDA - 201 301 (U.P.)
TEL. : 491 - 120 - 4241000, FAX : +91-120-42=11007
E-MAIL : taxaid@jcbhaalla.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Triveni Sugar Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Triveni Sugar Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
on that date and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in ac ~rdance with these requirements and the ICA™~ Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

HEAD OFFICE : B-17, Maharani Bagh, New Delhi - 110065



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “ Annexure B”.



(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under
section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of
Section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn. No. 001111N

AN
Lrtfﬁ'lmﬁi;() |

Partner
Membership No. 80051

UDIN: 210806SIAAAAARESEL

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021




Annexure A to Independent Auditors” Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under
the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members
of Triveni Sugar Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended on
March 31, 2021.

i

Since the Company does not have any items of fixed assets with it, the
provisions of clauses (i)(a), (i)(b) & (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories, the provisions of clause (ii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses (iii) (a), (iii) (b) & (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company
for the current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee
or security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the
current year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of sections 73
to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the
year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required
to maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.



10.

11.

12,

13.

(@) The Company has been regular in depositing with the appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees” State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess
and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in
respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no
dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other statutory dues,
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank and government and
has not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (viii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) nor any term loan was taken by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid /provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii)
of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with related
parties and details of transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.



14. According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not
made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

— Jo
udhir Mallick

Partner
Membership No. 80051

UDIN: 26800SIAAAAARGSC2

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f)
of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Trivemi
Sugar Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit ©f
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intern al
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contr ol
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportimg
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Instituteé of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.




Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operatirag
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting includesd
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the desig;n
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the intern al
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit ©f
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Charterexd
Accountants of India.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

e b

Partner
Membership No. 80051

UDIN: 216800CAAAAARLSEL

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : June 17, 2021



TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in & thousands, wnless otherwise stated)

Nole Mo,

31-Mar-21 3L EVIan20

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investmént property 2 18386.91 12315,00
Total non-current assets 18386,91 1273185,00]
Current assets
Financial assets
i.  Cash and cash equivalents 3 (a) 76.09 252717,
ii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 (b) 1000.00 .
iti. Other financial assets 4 10.99 .
Total current assels 1087.08 252717
Total assets 19473.99 1%842.17)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 5 20500.00 2€Q500.00
Other equity 6 (1038.19) (932.93)
Total equity 19461.81 149567,07
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 7 - 250,001
ii. Trade payables 8
() total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.80 1547
iif. Other financial liabilities 9 - 8.63
Other current liabilities 10 - 1.00
Income tax liabilities (net) 11 0.38 -
Total current liabilities 12.18 27510
Total liabilities 12.18 275.10
Total equity and liabilities 19473.99 1984217

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 001111N
"y
hir Mallick Debajit Bagchi
Partner Direc
Membership No. 80051 DIN:
Plnce:Moi‘ l CU‘P> Place mhLU .?)

Date : 17 June 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

Satvinder Singh Walia
Director
DIN : 00296589

place : 1) T DMLV 'Q)



TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All antownts in ¢ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Other income 12 10.99

Total income 10.99

Expenses

Finance costs 13 9.48 9.59]
Other expenses 14 106.39 418,67
Total expenses 115.87 428,26
Profit/(loss) before tax (104.88) (=128,26)
Tax expense:

- Current tax 15 0.38

- Deferred tax 15 =

Tolal tax expense 0.38 -
Profit/(loss) for the year (105.26) («128.26)
Other comprehensive income

A (i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -

A (if) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - .
B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss # o
B (i) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax = -
Total comprehensive income for the year (105.26) (428.26)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥ 1 each

Basic 16 (0.01) (0.46)
Diluted 16 (0.01) (0.46)
The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 001111N

-/\\\,«
dhir Mallick Debajit Bagchi

Partner Directo
Membership No. 80051 DIN :

Place:NoiDn(‘U_P) Place:

Date : 17 June 2021

~

Satvinder Singh Wi
Director
DIN : 00296589

Place‘:‘ j}\ O'r 'b

s

alia

YLD,



TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in ¢ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

m

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) before tax (104.88) (428,26.)
Adjustments for :

Interest income (10.99) -

Finance costs 9.48 9.5%]
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables (3.67) 367

Change in other liabilities (1.00) 1.00
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (111.06) (414.000)
Income tax (paid)/refund - (0.45)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (111.06) (114.45)
Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks (1000.00) "
Purchase of investment property (1071.91) (17315.00))
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (2071.91) (17315.00)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share captal - 20000.0:0{
Praceeds from borrowings from Fellow subsidiary - 250.00
Repayments of borrowings to Fellow subsidiary (250.00) -
Interest paid (18.11) (0.96)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities (268.11) 20249.0:
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2451.08) 2519.59
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 3(a)) 2527.17 7.58)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 3(a)) 76.09 2527.1'?'

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activites:

Borrawings | Interest payable

Balance as at 31 March 2019 - -

Cash flows 250,00 (0.96)
Finance costs accruals - 959
Balance as at 31 March 2020 250.00 8.63
Cash flows {250.00) 81Ty
Finance costs accruals - 948
{Balance as at 31 March 2021 - -

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited
Chartered Accountants :
Firm's registrqtion number : 001111N E
\{
\
hir Mallick Debajit| Bagchi Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 02561320 DIN : 00296589
PlaceNoihhcup) Place : Q’Y_EhLU?) PIace:N Dj:bh\LU'?)

Date : 17 June 2021




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al wmounts in 3 thousands, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital
Equity shares of 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2019 500.00
Issued during the year 20000.00
As at 31 March 2020 20500.00
Movement during the year 2
As at 31 March 2021 20500.00

B. Other equity

Total othexr ¢quity

Balance as at 31 March 2019

(504.67)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (428.26) (428.26)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - .
Total comprehensive income for the year (428.26) (428.26)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (932.93) (932.93)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (105.26) (105.26)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - .
Total comprehensive income for the year (105.26)} (105.26)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (1038.19) (1038,19)

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registyation number : 001111N

-~
\w ;
mick Debajit Bagchi Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Directo: Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : 02561320 DIN : 00296589
Place: N0 libﬂ Cb.p) Place : gfbh @\ @ Place: N OT DA (U ?)

Date : 17 June 2021 P ™™

fk}:\_




"TIRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Corporate information

‘Triveni Sugar Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domici led in
[ndia. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of equity share
capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at A-44, Hosiery Complex, Phase
ITextension, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201305.

Mote 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, winless
otherwise stated,

(a

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Compamny has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is reco gnised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.




TRIVENI SUCAR LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

(¢)

()

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances inslicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the ammount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that resflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. Whien an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and, where applicable, borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(8)

(h)

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the preriod
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated taseful
lives as stated in Schedule 1I along with residual values of 5%.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructiwe) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the oblig ation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognise«l as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surroundirag the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all ©f the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(ii) A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, tinless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period (except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made).

(iii) A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable, When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

(iv) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet clate.

Financial assets
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(ii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business mod. el for

managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurexment
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amo rtised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest ircome
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FEVTOCI.

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected cred it loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its fimancial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assuumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial Liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Noles to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transexction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, 3n the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value througl. profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its fin ancial
liabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

* Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designa ted as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods, The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

Derecognition

Equity instruments

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial liability.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

()

(k)

)

(m)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet wwhere
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of bussiness
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating; cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregate d,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance
with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Cormpany
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Noles to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in T thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2: Investment property

31-Mar-21 3 I=Mar20
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 17315.00
Additions 1071.91 1731500
Deletions &
Closing gross carrying amount 18386.91 17015,00

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment -
Depreciation charge/impairment losses -
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment -

Net carrying amount 18386.91 17315,00{

(i) Description about investment property
The Company’s investment property consist of parcel of land at Digrauli, District Sharanpur, Uttar Pradesh, India.

(ii) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
There is no amount related to investment property which is recopnised in statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Restrictions on realisability and contractual obligations

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and it is under no contractual obligations to either
purchase, construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

(iv) Fair value

The investment property owned by the Company is situated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings areas, The property was pux-chased in
the year 2019-20 at the circle rate from the Holding Company. In view of slowdown in real estate and industrial activities, the fair value
cannot be determined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar properties (including size) in the vicinity of the subject

Note 3: Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash eiuivalents

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in current account 76.09 2527.17

Total cash and cash equivalents 76.09 2527.17

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost
Balances with bank in fixed deposit 1000.00 -
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1000.00 -

Note 4: Other financial assets

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current Non- current
At amortised cost

Accrued interest 10.99 -

Total other financial assets 10.99 - -




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in & thousands, unless othernwise stated)
Note 5: Equity share capital

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
AUTHORISED
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 2,60,00,000 26000.00 5,00,000 26000,00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of ¥ 1 each 2,05,00,000 20500.00 5,00,000 20500.00

(i) Movements in equity share capital

Number of shares Amount
As at 31 March 2019 5,00,000 500,00
Issued during the year 2,00,00,000 20000.00
As at 31 March 2020 2,05,00,000 20500,00]
Movement during, the year - |
As at 31 March 2021 2,05,00,000 20500.00|

(ii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of ¥ 1/- per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share, The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is sub»ject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after
meeting all liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iii} Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Number of shares % holding ~Number of shares %0 holding,

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding

Company) 2,05,00,000 100.00% 2,05,00,000 100,00%

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Number of shares % holding - Number of shares % holding

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding

Company) 2,05,00,000 100.00% 2,05,00,000 100.00%
Note 6: Other equity

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Retained earnings (1038.19) (932.93)
Total other equity (1038.19) (932.93)

(i) Retained earnings

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Opening balance (932.93)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (105.26) (428.26)
Closing balance (1038.19) (932.93)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity shareholders in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in ¥ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7: Current borrowings

31-Mar-21 WMar-20

Unsecured- at amortised cost
Repayable on demand

- Loan from related party (refer note 17) - 250,00

Total current borrowings

» 250,00

Note 8 : Trade payables

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current No ®- current

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises (refer note 22) . ) =

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 11.80 . 1547 .
enterprises and small enterprises '

Total trade payables 11,80 % 15.47 -

Note 9: Other financial liabilities

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-2(0

Current Non- current Current Nos - current

At amortised cost

Accrued interest

Total other financial liabilities - - 8.63 -

Note 10 : Other liabilities

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Current Non- current Current Non- current
Statutory remittances - - 1.00 -
Total other liabilities - - 1,00 -

Note 11: Income tax balances

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current Naon- current

Income tax assets
Tax refund receivable (net) 2

Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) 0.38

0.38 - z =

Note 12 : Other income

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 10.99

Total other income 10,99




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amownts in & thousands, wnless otheruise stated)

Note 13 : Finance cosls

31-Mar-21 B1-Mar-20
Interest on loan 9.48 0,59
Total finance costs 9.48 9.59

Note 14: Other expenses

31-Mar-21 3-Mar-20

Service charges 70.80 70,80
Legal and professional expenses 17.48 274
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 11.80 11.80
Rates and taxes 4,80 306,70
Miscellaneous expenses 1.51 6,63
Total other expenses 106.39 118,67

(i) Payment to Auditors

31-Mar-21 S1=-Mar-20
Statutory audit fee 11.80 11,80
Total payment to auditors 11.80 11,80

Note 15 : Income tax expense

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current tax

In respect of the current year 0.38 -
0,38 -

Deferred tax -

Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 0.38 -

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Profit/ (loss) before tax (104.88) (428.26)

Income tax expense calculated at 25,168% (2019-20: 25.168%) (26.40) (107.78)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 26.78 107.78
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 0,38 -

The income tax charge has been provided considering the option of lower tax rates available under section 115BAA of the Income Tax
Act, 1961, as introduced by The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019,

Note 16: Earnings/(loss) per share

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] (105.26) (428.26)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 2,05,00,000 9,37,158
Basic earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/B] (0.01) (0.46)

Diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/B] (0.01) (0.46)




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Motes 1o the Financial Statements for the vear einded March 31, 2021

(Al amounts in € thovsanids, weiless olfertoise stated)

Note 17: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Co mpany

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place
(a) Holding Company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)
(b) Fellow Subsidiary
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)
Triveni Energy Systems Limied ( TESL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances

i I.h‘h“““ Fellow Subgidiarios
Einancial yeay Comp
MNature of transactions with Related Parties
Service charges expense 31-Mar-21 70,80 - - 70.80
31-Mar-20 70,80 - - 70.80
Issue of equity share capital 31-Mar-21 - - = =
31-Mar-20 20000.00 - - 20000.00
Purchase of investment property 31-Mar-21 - £ 2 i
31-Mar-20 17315.00 - - 17315.00
Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of 31-Mar-21 (173.00) - - (173.00)
party (net of expenses incurred by party on 31-Mar-20 (305.00) - - (305.00)
behalf of the Company) on reimbursable basis
Interest expense 31-Mar-21 - a9 5.69 9.48
31-Mar-20 - 614 3.45 9.59
Loan taken 3-Mar-21 - - - #
31-Mar-20 - 100.00 150.00 250.00
Repayment of loan taken 31-Mar-21 - 100,00 150,00 250.00
31-Mar-20 - - = 4
Outstanding balances
Payables 31-Mar-21 - - - -
31-Mar-20 - 105,52 153.11 258.63

(iv) Terms & conditions
(a) Loans from Fellow subsidiaries was taken at normal commercial terms & conditions at prevailing market rate of interest,
(b) Transactions with related parties, including service charges, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking into consideration

market conditions, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. All other transactions were made on normal commercial terms and
conditions and at market rates.

(c) The outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash,




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al wmonnts in & thousands, nnless otherwise stated)
Note 18: Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes total equity of the Company. The primary objective of the capital mamagement ls
to maximize shareholder value. The Company does not have borrowings.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. The Companys may resort

to further issue of capital to fund expansion of business, The Company monitors capital structure through gearing ratio whic h at the end
of reporting, period was as follows:

Current borrowings (note 7) - 250.00
Trade payables (note 8) 11.80 1547
Other financial liabilities (note 9) - B.63
Total debt 11.80 274,10
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 3(a)) (76.09) (2527.17)
Net debt (A) . »

Total equity (note 5 & note 6) 19461.81 19567.07
‘Total equity and net debt (B) 19461.81 19567.07
Gearing ratio (A/B) 0% 0%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020,

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Note 19: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of trade payables and other financial liabilities. The Company’s financial assets comprise of
cash and bank balances. The Company's activities does not expose it to market risk and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity
through internal accruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company /Fellow subsidiary companies.

Considering present state of business operations, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. The operations of the Company during; early stages
of business will be supported by the Holding Company/ Fellow subsidiary companies through loans or through equity infusion, as
appropriate. All financial liabilities shall mature within one year from the reporting date.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in & thousands, wnless otherwise stated)

Note 20: Fair value measurements

(i)  Financial instruments by category

31-Mar-21 - 31-Mar-20)

EVTPL/ Amortised ; - Asmortised
FVTOCI cost " ) cost

Financial assets
Cash and bank balances - 1076.09 - 252717

Total financial assets - 1076,09 - 252717

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - - 250,00
Trade payables - 11.80 - 1547
Other financial liabilities - - - H.6%
Total financial liabilities - 11.80 - 274,10

(i) The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in tkae financial
statements approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature,



TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All anoents i & thonsands, unless otherise stated)

Note 21: Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Based on management analysis, there are no material commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 202]
and 31 March 2020

Note 22 ; Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Mediuxn
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year; as at the end of the year

(i) Principal amount
(ii) Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the - -
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of

disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises . -
Development Act, 2006

Note 23: Global health pandemic from COVID-I19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company has
evaluated the impact of this pandemic on its business operations and financial position using internal and external sources of
information, including economic forecasts and estimates from market sources, and based on its review of current indicators of future
economic conditions, there is no significant impact on carrying amount of the assets due to impairment and on its financial results for
the year ended 31 March 2021. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties
associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different in future from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Note 24: Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 17 June2021 subject to approval of
shareholders.

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants

and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

Firm's registiytion number : 001111N A
\\~
dhir Mallick Debajit Bagchi Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Direc Director
Membership No. 80051 DIN : (2561320 DIN : 00296589
Place : NOﬁ’D n (U‘p) Place : G]:bh LU«P) Place : Dqub h LU' P)

Date : 17 June 2021




Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Svastida Projects Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstate d on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of

Head Office : U-119A, Shakarpur, New Delhi-110092, Mobile : 99103 6?918 _
Branch Office : LG-CS-24 B, Ansal Plaza (Opp. Dabur India Ltd.), Vaishali, Ghaziabad, U.E., Pin - 20101Q, NCR, India
Phone: +91- 120 - 4121942, E-mail: chitresh.gupta@gstexperts.net, gupta_chitresh@yahoo.in



Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Compainies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Compary in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting stanclards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoumnting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementatior and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

wever, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,



 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”‘

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the Act,
in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid/provided any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of Section
197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the year.




(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rul e 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position -

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 017079N

CA Chitresh Gupta
Partner

M. No. 098247
UDIN: 21098247AAAAUW5133

Place: Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021



Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of Svastida Projects Limited on the financial statements as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2021

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause (iii)(a), clause (iii)(b) and clause (iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans nor provided any guarantee or security. In respect of investments
made, provisions of section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax with the
appropriate authority. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company’s
operation did not give rise to any dues on account of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues. There were no undisputed statutory dues amounts outstanding and
payable as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were nc dues of Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and Goods and Services Tax as at
March 31, 2021 on account of any dispute.

The Company has not taken any loan or borrowing from Financial Institutions, Banks and Government and
has not issued any debenture. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance
with generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

t‘5'-\5‘
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14, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the recor«ls of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the recor ds of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 017079N

C o oheeae

CA Chitresh Gupta

Partner
M. No. 098247
UDIN: 21098247 AAAAUWS133

Place: Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021



Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Svastida Projects Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(1C) of the Companies Act

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Tntcrn
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtan
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate tc provide a basis for ot
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and proceduids o
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements. .




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 017079N

CA Chitresh Gupta
Partner
M. No. 098247

Place: Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021



SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(A amounds in 3 thowsinds, sndess otheriese stited)

Note Mo, 31-Mar-21 31-Dlan-20
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property 2 22397.46 27130700
Financial assets
i, Investmenls 3 20000.00 20000,00/
Total non-current assets 42397.46 471307.00]
Current assels
Financial assets
i.  Cash and cash equivalents 4 (a) 163.30 2844.83
ii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 (b) 1700.00 250.00
iii. Other financial assels 5 18.93 32.70)
Total current assets 1882.23 3127.53|
Total assets 44279.69 44434.53
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 6 45500.00 4:5500.00
Other equity 7 (1237.45) (1145.72)
Total equity 4426255 44354.28
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i, Trade payables 8
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises i -
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.80 74.31
Other current liabilities 9 - 0.50
Income tax liabilities (net) 10 5.34 5.44
Total current liabilities 17.14 80.25]
Total liabilities 17.14 80.25]
Total equity and liabilities 44279.69 44434.53'
The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For ind on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N
3\ 923 ’* i
Chitresh Gupta 7 atvinder Singh Walia
Partner Director
Membership No, 98247 DIN : 00296589

Place :M ?

Date : 18 June 2021

Sy VAT




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 202
(Allmounts in & thousmnds, unless otherwise staled)

Note No. «31-Mar-21 31-Mslar-20
Other income 11 21.21 21,63
Total income 21.21 21,63
Expenses
Other expenses 12 107.60 165,11
Total expenses 107.60 165,11
Profit/(loss) before tax (86.39) (7143.48)
Tax expense:
- Current tax 13 534 544
- Deferred tax 13 - “
Total tax expense 5.34 5.44
Profit/(loss) for the year (91.73) (148,92

Other comprehensive income

A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - .
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss o L

B(i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 2 A
B (i) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - i

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax = 4
Total comprehensive income for the year (91.73) {148.92)

Earnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥ 1 each
Basic 14 (0.00) (0.01)
Diluted 14 (0.00) (0.01)

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For ahd on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N ~ {

hitresh Gupta e Debajit i Satvinder Singh Walia

Partner Director Director
Membership No. 98247 DIN : 02561320 DIN : 00296589
(4] Place

Place: 08 |

Date ;18 June 2021
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SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al anounts e & thowsands, witless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) before tax (86.39) (143.48)
Adjustments for :

Interest income (21.21) (<21.63)
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables (62.51) 62,21

Change in other liabilities (0.50) 0.50
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (170.61) (102,40)
Income tax (paid)/ refund (5.44) (4.70)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (176.05) (107.10)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment property (1090.46) (213.07.00)
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks (1450.00) 119.62
Interest received 34.98 11.75
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (2505.48) (211.75.63)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital - 24.000.00
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from f-inancing activities . - 24:000.00/
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2681.53) 271727
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year [refer note 4 (a)] 2844.83 127.56)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [refer note 4 (a)] 163.30 2844.83

There are no changes in liabilities arising from financing activities during the year, including both changes from cash flows and non-
cash changes.

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N

Cq s ’
Chitresh Gupta Debajit Bagchi Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Director Director

Membership No. 9

DIN : 02561320 _ DIN : 00296589
Place :I.\Bf;mie

Place : Nwd& C_UP.) Place NOJM CU.p)

Date : 18 June 2021



SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in # Housands, unless otherwise staled)

A. Equity share capital

Equily shares of ¥ 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2019

21500.00
Issued during the year 24000.00
As at 31 March 2020 45500.00
Movement during the year =
As at 31 March 2021 4550000

B. Other equity

Reservesand surplus Tl
Total otherequity

i . EH SR T b T, ki 3 A Bl Refained earnings
Balance as at 31 March 2019 (996.80) (996.80)

Profit/ (loss) for the year (148.92) (148.92)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax 2 -
Total comprehensive income for the year (148.92) (148.92)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (1145.72) (1145.72)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (91.73) (91.73)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (91.73) (91.73)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (1237 45) (1237.45)

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Proj ects Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N

e
CL okt
Chitresh Gupta — Debajit Bagchi Satvinder Singh Walia
Partner Directqr Director
Membership No. 98247 DIN 61320 DIN : 00296589
Place: _{), JP° Place: IN/ s J CU* P) Flace: N giolth ( U P

Date : 18 June 2021




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Corporate information

Svastida Projects Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled
in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of equity share
capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at A-44, Hosiery Complex, hase
II extension, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201305.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements, These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation and presentation
(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention except for investments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for value in use in Ind AS 36 Inpairment of Assets (see note

1(c)).

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into currenf/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

(b) Revenue recognition
The Company’s revenue is from interest income, Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(©)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indlicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amxount
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which thexe are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units), Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and, where applicable, borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the



SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(f)

(8)

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule II along with residual values of 5%.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

()

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognisecl as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period (except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Financial assets

(i)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or

other comprehensive income, For assets in the nature of debt instruments, this will depend on
the business model.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

+  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amoxtised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

 Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within
other gains/ (losses) in the period in which it arises.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* refains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(1)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
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SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(i1)

* those measured at amortised cost,

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FV'I'PL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the ennd of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transa ction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial lability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

(iii) Derecognition

(iv)

Equity instruments

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial liability.



SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(i)

()

(k)

(1)

(m)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet w-here
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair walue
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
» Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at the measurement date;
* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance
with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value,

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Naotes to the Financial Statements {or the year ended  March 31, 2021

(Al semonints im0 & thensands, wiless eilieruise stated)

Note 2: Investment property

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 21307.00 -
Additions 1090.46 21307.00
Deletions - -
Closing gross carrying amount 22397.46 21307.00

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment - H
Depreciation charge/ impairment losses = |
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment = -
Net carrying amount 22397.46 2130?.00'

(i) Description about investment property
The Company’s investment property consist of parcel of land at (a) Digrauli, District Saharanpur, Uttar Pradesh, India; and (b) Kharar,
District Shamli, Uttar Pradesh, India

(ii) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
There is no amount related to investment property which is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Restrictions on realisability and contractual obligations

Though the transfer of titles in the name of the Company is pending in respect of free hold land having carrying amount of 2 34,85 lakhs, the
Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment praperty and it is under no contractual obligations to either purchase,
construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

(iv) Fair value

The investment property owned by the Company is situated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings areas. The property was purchased in the
year 2019-20 at the circle rate from the Holding Company. In view of slowdown in real estate and industrial activities, the fair value cannot be
determined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar properties (including size) in the vicinity of the subject property.

Note 3: Non-current investments

At Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Unguoted Investments (fully paid-up)

Investments in Preference shares

2,00,00,000 (31 March 2019 : 2,00,00,000) 10 % Non-Cumulative Redeemable

Preference share of 2 1/- each of Triveni Engineering Limited (Fellow 20000.00 20000.00
Subsidiary)

Total non-current investments 20000.00 20000.00

Total non-current investments 20000.00 20000.00

Aggregate amount of quoted investments = o
Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investment = -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 20000.00 20000.00]
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 2 -

Note 4: Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20,

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in current account 163.30 2844.83

Total cash and cash equivalents 163.30 2344.83'

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in fixed deposit 1700.00 250.00

Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1700.00 250.00]
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al aonts te & thonsmnds, undess otherese staled)
Note 5: Other financial assels

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Current Non- current Current Non- current
At amortised cost
Accrued interest 18.93 - 3270 -
‘Total other financial assels 18.93 - 32,70 -

Note 6: Equity share capital

F1-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Number of shares Amounl  Number of shares Amount

AUTHORISED

Equity shares of 21 each 4,75,00,000 4750000 4,75,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of 2 1 each 4,55,00,000 45500.00 4,55,00,000

(i) Movements in equity share capital

Number of shares Amounl

As at 31 March 2019 2,15,00,000

Issued during the year 2,40,00,000 24000.00
As at 31 March 2020 4,55,00,000 45500.00
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2021 4,55,00,000 45500.00

(ii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of T 1 /- per share, The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share, The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after
meeting all liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iii) Details of shares held by the helding company, its subsidiaries and associales

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Number of shares 4y holding  Number of shares Y% holding

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding

Company) 4,55,00,000 100% 4,55,00,000 100%

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Number of shares Uaholding Number of shares % holding

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding

Company) 4,55,00,000 100% 4,55,00,000 100%

?‘a;‘ﬁ..__{_ o
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(AN mmoarts in & Hiousands, infess offierise stated)

Note 7: Other equity

Retained earnings (1237.45) (1145.72)
Total other equity (1237.45) (1145372}[

(i) Retained earnings

Opening balance (1145.72) (996,80)'

Profit/ (loss) for the year (91.73) (148.92)
Closing balance (1237.45) (1145.72)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity shareholders in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 8: Trade payables

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current Non- current

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and Jl
small enterprises (refer note 20)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables 11.80 - 74.31 =

11.80 - 7431 -

Note 9: Other liabilities

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Current Non- current Current Non- current
Statutory remittances - - 0.50 -
Total other liabilities - - 0.50 -]

Note 10 : Income tax balances

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Current Non- current Current Non- currenl

Income tax assets
Tax refund receivable (net) 2 =

Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) 534 - 5.44 =
5.34 - 544 -

Note 11: Other income

Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost)

Total other income 2121
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(AN anronnds in & Hhossands, inless otheraise staded)
Note 12: Other expenses

Service charges 70.80 7080
Legal and professional expenses 1571 2274
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 11.80 11.80)
Rates and taxes 3.60 59.25)
Bank charpes 1.49 0.52
Printing and stationary 4.20 -
1'I‘utal other expenses 107.60 165.11

(i) Payment to Auditors

Statutory audit fee 11.80 11.80I

Total paymenl to auditors 11.80 11.80'

Note 13 : Income tax expense

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Current tax 534 5.44

Deferred tax

Total income lax expense recognised in profit or loss 5.34 5.44

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Profit/ (loss) before tax (86.39) (143.48)
Income tax expense calculaled at 25.168% (2019-20: 25.168%) {21.74) (36.11)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 27.08 41.55/
Total income tax expense recognised in profil or loss 5.34 544

The income tax charge has been provided considering the option of lower tax rates available under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act,
1961, as introduced by The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019,

MNote 14: Earnings/(loss) per share

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] (91.73)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 4,55,00,000

Basic earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of 21 per share) [A/B] (0.00) (0.01)
Diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/B] (0.00) (0.01)
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(Al amaiints i & N

T

Note 15: Related party transactions

@)

(i) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

Related parties where control exists
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

wpless otheroese stated)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances

- 1 Holding Company
Financial year Sing Jlit
& TEIL

Nature of transactions with Related Parties

Service charges expense 31-Mar-21 70.80 70.80
31-Mar-20 70.80 70.80

Expenses incurred by the Company 31-Mar-21 (178.46) (178.46)

on behalf of party (net of expenses 31-Mar-20 E: =

incurred by party on behalf of the

Company) on reimbursable basis

Purchase of investment property 31-Mar-21 - -
31-Mar-20 21307.00 21307.00

Issue of equity share capital 31-Mar-21 = z
31-Mar-20 24000.00 2400!].!][Ir

Qutstanding balances

Receivables/ Payables 31-Mar-21 = &

31-Mar-20 = =

(iv) Terms & conditions

The transactions with related parties, including service charges, are made on terms which are
at arm’s length after taking into consideration market conditions, external benchmarks and
adjustment thereof. All other transactions were made on normal commercial terms and
conditions and at market rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in ® thowsands, unless othe roise staled)
Note 16: Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes total equity of the Company. The primary objective of the capital
management is to maximize shareholder value, The Company does not have borrowings.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. The Company
may resort to further issue of capital to fund expansion of business, The Company monitors capital structure through gearing
ratio which at the end of reporting period was as follows:

Trade payables (note 8) 11.80 743
Total debt 11.80 74.31
Less: Cash and cash equivalents [note 4(a)] (163.30) (2844.83)
Net debt (A) - -
Total equity (note 6 & note 7) 44262.55 44354.26)
Total equity and net debt (B) 44262.55 44354.28
Gearing ratio (A/B) 0% 0%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
31 March 2020

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Note 17 : Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise of cash and bank
balances and investments in preference shares of a fellow subsidiary. The Company's activities does not expose it to market
risk and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity through internal accruals and capital infusion from the Holding,
Company.

Considering present state of business operations, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. Financial liabilities mainly include trade
payables. The operations of the Company during early stages of business will be supported by the Holding Company through
loans or through equity infusion, as appropriate. All financial liabilities shall mature within one year from the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended  March 31, 2021
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Note 18: Fair value measurements

(i) Financial instruments by category

F1-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
DS o Amortised cost INTILE® Amortised cost
Financial assets
Investments 20000.00 . 20000.00 -
Cash and bank balances - 1863.30 - 3094.83
Other linancial assels - 18,93 - 3270
Total financial assels 20000.00 1882,23 20000.00 3127.53

Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 11.80 - 74.31

Total financial liabilities - 11,80 - 74,31

*Mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL, There is no (inancial instrument which is designated as FVTPL.

(if) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised
and measured at fair value, To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has
classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard, An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 F'otal

As at 31 March 2021
Financial assets

- Investments in Preference shares at FVTPL (Unquoted) 3 # ¥ 20000.00 20000.00
- % 20000.00 20000.00

Financial liabilities : : . -

As at 31 March 2020
Financial assets
- Investments in Preference shares at FVITL (Unquoted) 3 ) = 20000.00 20000.00
- " 20000.00 20000.00)

Financial liabilities - = = =

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted unadjusted market prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This includes listed equity instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded
in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include the fair value of investment in preference shares of a fellow
subsidiary company. The fair valuation is determined using discounted cash flows technique. Resulting fair value estimates are included
in level 3.

(iv) Valuation processes
The Finance team headed by Group CFO has requisite knowledge and skills in valuation of financial instruments.

(v) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements
approximate their fair values mostly due to their short-term nature,




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amonnts in & thousards, undess otheruise stated)

Note 19: Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Based on management analysis, there are no material eommitments, contingont labilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020,

Note 20 : Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Based on the intimation received by the Company from ils suppliers vegavding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Jinterprises
Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided huore below:

; A Sty N ot o sk A1-Mar-215 1 d1-Mar-2
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting,
year; as at the end of the year
(i) Principal amount >
(i) Interest due on above “ =

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along, with the amount of the payment made to the supplior boyond the appointed day during - -
each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of vach accounting veat; and Z :
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeoding years, until such date when the

interost dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowanee of a deduetible . =
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Entorprises Development Act, 2006

Note 21: Global health pandemic from COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of econemic activity, The Company has evalualeel the impacy
of this pandemic on its business operations and financial position using internal and external sources of information, including economic forecasts
and estimates from market sources, and based on ils review of current indicators of future gconomic conditions, there is no significant impact on
carrying amount of the assets due to impairment and on its financial resulls for the year ended 31 March 2021, However, the impact assessment of
COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different in

future from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements, The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to
future economic conditions.

Note 22; Approval of financial stalements
The financial statements were approyed for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 18 June 2021 subject to approval of shareholders,

As per our report of even date attached

For Chiiresh Gupla & Associates For
Charlered Accountanis
Firm's registration number : (017079

Cloclcddbe

behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited

4

Chitresh Gupta Debajit Bagehi Satvinder Singh Walia

Partner Director Direclor

Membership No, 98247 DIN ; 02561320 DIN : 00296589 .

Place:é P Place : Oscﬂ@CU p) Flace : ND;J@ CU P)

Date : 18 june 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and profit
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
g to report in this regard.

www.sskmin.com




$S KOTHARI MEHTA

- & COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged With Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial stalements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and defecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s {inancial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

+ Obtainan understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appmprlate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by 1 paaaagemgm
ot w N
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and i evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them al} relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.
2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The Company is a private limited company and hence the provisions of section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under section
197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 1o the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

it.  The Company did not have any material foresecable losses in long-term contracts and the
Company did not have any derivative contracts;

fii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 00075 M’wﬁ‘?g“

; _,,,._ﬁ.._m_;:\f»; .

Vijay Kumar

Partner

&

Membership No, 092671 -
UDIN: 21092671 AAAAAC9019

Place: New De!hi
Date: June 19, 2021
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure as referred in paragraph (1) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of MATHURA WASTEWATER

MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021, we report that:

iii.

VL

vil.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not hold any property, plant and equipment
during the year. Accordingly, the requirements under the paragraph 3(i) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not hold any inventory during the year,
Accordingly, the requirements under the paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited [ability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly,
the requirements under the paragraph 3(iii)(a), 3(iii}(b) & 3(iii)c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loan, made investment, provided guarantee or security under section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the requirements under the paragraph 3(iv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the requirements of
paragraph 3 (v} of the Order are not appiicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, requirement to maintain cost records
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended prescribed by the
Central Government under Section 148 of the Act is not applicable to the Company during the

year,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax, cess and other material
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable. According to the
information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the records of the
Company there were no undisputed aforesaid statutory dues payable as at 31 March 2021 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
the records of the Company, there were no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,

goods and services tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or value added tax which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute. :
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In our opinion, on the basis of audit procedures and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any banks
during the year. The Company did not borrow any amount from financial institution and
government and has not issued any debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised moneys
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.
The term loan has been applied for the purpose for which it was raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees being
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 197 of the Companies
Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company. Accordingly, the requirements under the paragraph 3(xi)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the requirements of paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
24, Related Party Disclosures specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For 8 S KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000,

Vijay Kumar
Partner

o

e

Membership No. 092671
UDIN: 2109267TAAAAAC9019

Place: New Dethi
Date: June 19, 2021
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) as referred to in paragraph 2(f} of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of MATHURA
WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™} as of 31 March 2021 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Iniernal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and effictent conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, {he safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements of the Company. -

e
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparaiion of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with autherisations of management and directors of the
company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
vnauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internai financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For § SKOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000 /56N";

Vijay Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 092671

UDIN: 210926 71AAAAAC9019

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 19, 2021




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 202

(AN mannts in § lakhs, unless offierwise stafed}

Non-current assets
Financial assets

i, Trade receivables 3 11850.13 8076.40
Deferred tax assests {net) 4 w3 18.15
Income tax assets (nel} 5 0.69 -
Qther non-current assels 6 - 1.48
‘Total non-current assets 11884,13 8096.03
Current assefs
Financial asseis

i, Trade receivables 3 401.50 1087.11

ii. Cash and cash equivalents 7 124,23 61.75
Other curreni assets 6 3231.88 1374.32
Total current assets 3757.61 2523.18
Total assets 1564174 10619.21
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 8 1350.30 1350.30
Clher equity g 1364,11 765.15
Total equily 2714.41 2105.45
LIABILITIES
Non-curvent liabilities
Financial liabitities

i.  Borrowings 10 6822.68 1510.00
Qther non-current liabidities 11 108.51 7212
Total non-current liabilities 6931.19 1582.12
Current liabilities
Financial liabitities

i.  Trade payables 12

{a) total cutstanding dwes of micra enderprises and small enterprises - -
{1 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises anc small enterprises 5067.52 478728

ii.  Other financial fiabilities 13 256,98 18.62
Other current liabilities 11 657.3¢ 2081.97
Income tax liabilities (net} ] 14.34 43.77
Total current liabilities 5996,14 6931.64
Total liabilities 12927.33 B8513.76
Total equity and liabilities 15641.74 10619.21

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our reporl of even date attached

For $ § Kothari Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited

L) A CL -

Chartered Accountants

llksmrw ;

Vijay Kumar Nikhil Sawhney B K. Agrawal
Partner Direcior Director
DIN: 00029028 DIN: 08155585

Membership Nao., 092671

Anil Garg Sikander Singh
CFO Company Secretary

2HAH%

Date 19 June 2021




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Logs for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts D ¥ lakhs, wless otheruvise siaied}

Revenee (rom upilons 14 9263.81 11253.98
Other inceme 15 Q.16 2.44
Total income 9263.97 11256,42
Expenses

Cost of malerials consumed 339892 3389.00
Empioyee benelits expense 16 1.60 -
Finance costs 17 406,59 280
Other expenses 18 4638.07 (812,72
Total expenses 8445.18 10229.73
Profitf{loss) before tax 818.79 1026.69
Tax expense:

~ Currend tax 19 218.99 276.34
- Deferred tax 19 (9.16) (17.94)
Tolal tax expense 209.83 258.40
Profit/{loss) for the year 608.96 768.29
Other comprehensive income

A (i) lems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

A {ii) lncome fax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

B &) dtems that may be reclassified o profit or loss - -

13 (i} Income tax refating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 608,96 768.29
Earnings/{loss) per equity share of T 1 each

Basic 20 0.45 1.03
Diluled 2 (.45 1.03
‘The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an indegral part of these financial stalements

As per our reporl of even date attached

For 8 S Kothari Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
Figm's registration nuxn

N&W/

Nikhil Sawhney

Dircctor
DIN: 00029028

‘Anil Garg
CFO

Vijay Kumar
Pariner
Membership No, 092671

Place: Ne o D{’,lh!

Date ;19 junc 2621

Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited

.'/'127\“@?{ ‘

Directar
DIN: 08155585

Sikander Singh
Company Suecretary

338%%




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in BEquity for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amaounts in & lakhs, unless otherwise statfed)

A, Equity share capital

As at 31 March 2019 030
Issued during the year 1350.00
As at 31 March 2020 1350.30)
Movement during the year -
As at 31 March 2021 1350.30

B. Other equity

Balance as at 31 March 2019 (13.14) (13.14)

Profit/ (loss} for the year 768.29 768.29
Other comprehensive income, nel of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 768.29 768.29
Balance as at 31 March 2020 755.15 755.15
Profit/ (loss) for the year 608.96 608.96
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 608.96 608,96
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1364.11 1364.11

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For § S Kothari Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited
Firm's registration number : \N% J}
X 5
Vijay Kumar Nikhil Sawhney
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 092671 DIN: 00029028 DIN: 08155585

Place: New Deipri

>t ol

Anil Garg Sikander Singh
CFO Company Secretary

23 %8%3

Daie :19 June 2021




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Staternent of Cash Flows for the year ended Marah 31, 2027

(Al amownts in 3 lakhs, wnless atheradse stated)

Cash [fews from operating activities
Trofit/{loss) before tax 818.7% 1026.69
Adjustments for:

Inlerest income {0.10) {2.44)

Finance cesls 46.59 28.01
Working capital adjustments

Change in {rade receivables (309432} (9.163.51)

Changu in other asseis {18506.07) 940,23

Change in trade payables 280.24 4,785.00

Change in other liabililies (1388.28) (645.52)
Cash generated from / (used in) eperations {4833.01) {3031.78)
Income fax paid (249.00 (182.44)
Net cash inflow / {outflow) fromn operating activities (5082, 10) {3214.22)
Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease / (increase) in depaosits with banks - 415,00
Interest received 0.13 4.45
Nel cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 0.13 419,45
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital - 135600
Proceeds (rom borrowings from holding company 2020.00 1430.00
Repayments of borrowings to holding company {1530.00) -
Proceeds from other long lerm borrowings 5(135.10 .
Interest paid (380.05) (10.71}
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing aclivities 5144.45 764,29
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 62.48 (2548)
Cash and cash equivalenis al the beginning of the year [refer note 7] 61,75 87.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [refer note 7} 124.23 61.75

Reconcillation of labilities arising from financing activities:

= iz R N S SRR Sh g 5 & e 2
Balance a a3] March 2019 80.00 1.32
Cash flows 1430.00 (10.71)
Finance cosls accruals - 28,01
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1510.00 18.62
Cash flows 552510 (380.05}
Finance cosls aceruals - 406.59
Balance as at 31 March 2021 i 035,10 44.56

The accompanying notes 1 o 28 form an integral parl of these financial statements
As per our report of even date atlached

For 8§ S Kothari Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited

NS

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration

Vijay Kumar

Partner : ' Director Director

Membership No. 092671 Ot j DIN: 00029328 DiN: D8155585
y &

Place: (New Delb /

N 2 i
£
g Anil Garg ikander Singh
CFO Company Secretary

DBate :19 June 2021




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

Corporate information

Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares,
incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered office of the Company is located at A-44, Hosiery
Complex, Phase II extension, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201305. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited, incorporated as a special purpose wvehicle for
implementation of a project/order awarded by Yamuna Pollution Control Unit, U.P, Jal Nigam, Agra
(“UIN") to the Company for “Development of Sewage Treatment Plants and Associated Infrastructure on
Hybrid Annuity PPP basis at Mathura Uttar Pradesh” under the Namami Gange Programme.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

a) Basis of preparation and presentation
prep p
(i} Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind

AB) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iti) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The operating cycle
of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

(b) Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Transaction price at which revenue is
recognised is net of goods & services tax and amounts collected on behalf of third parties, if any and
includes effect of variable consideration (viz. returns, rebates, trade allowances, credits, penalties
etc.). Variable consideration is estimated using the expected value method or most likely amount as
appropriate in a given citcumstance and is included in the transaction price only to the extent it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently

resolved, T




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

Recognising revenue from major business activities

(i)

(iii)

Rendering of services
The Company provides engineering services that are either sold separately or bundled together
with the sale of goods to a customer,

Contracts for bundled sales of goods and engineering services are comprised of two
performance obligations because the promises to transfer goods and provide engineering
services are distinct and capable of being separately identifiable. Accordingly, the Company
allocates the transaction price based on relative stand-alone selling prices of such goods and
engineering services,

The Company recognises revenue from engineering services over time, using an input method
to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service is determined as follows:
* erection & commissioning / servicing revenue - based on technical estimate of completion
of physical proportion of the contract work;
* operation & maintenance revenue - as the proportion of the total period of services contract
that has elapsed at the end of the reporting period

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are analysed to determine combination of contracts and identification of
performance obligations and accordingly transaction price is allocated amongst performance
obligations based on stand-alone selling prices. Performance obligations, in construction
contracts, generally includes construction/ turnkey related activities and operation &
maintenance related activities which are satisfied over time with the customer receiving benefits
from the activities being performed by the Company.,

When the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligations of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based on the proportion of
contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs,
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company. Contract costs excludes costs that do not depict the Company’s progress in satisfying
the performance obligation.

When the outcome of performance obligations of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, but the Company expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the performance
obligation, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of the contract costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes {o the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

(©)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

(iy Currenttax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from

"profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Such




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

deferred tax assets and Habilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and Habilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
rectuced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

(iif) Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination,

(f) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period {except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date,




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Slatements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(8)

(h)

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short-term
employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised during the year when the employees render the service.

Financial assets
() Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(ii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired, Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FYTOC] are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, the Company applies simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected life time losses to be recognised after initial recognition of
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MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

(iv)

receivables. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significéntly, twelve months ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on twelve-months ECL. ECL is determined with reference to
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the financial asset and is adjusted for
forward looking estimates.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company
* has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* refains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of
the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit
or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Company allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss
would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i)

(ii)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the

Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial Habilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods,

Measurement
Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, Transaction

cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not at fajr value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial liability
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial

liabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL, Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on

remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

* Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

(k)

(iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancelation
of the Company's own equity instruments,

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

(tv) Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial liability.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seftle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
*+ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilities
that the Company can access at the measurement date;
* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Statement of cash flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the

effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows,
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
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Notos 1o the Financial Statemends for the yvear ended March 31, 2021

(m) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance
with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

{n) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Note 2: Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the
Company’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degtee of judgement or complexity,
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning
out to be different than those originally assessed,

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,

(i)  Global health pandemic from COVID-I9
The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in India during last year has caused significant
disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. During the period of lockdown in the first
quarter of the financial year, the business operations were closed for about 3-5 weeks during
that lockdown period subsequent to which these have resumed normal operation by the
second week of May'2020. The second wave of outbreak of COVID-19, which started towards
the end of the financial year and continued subsequent to the closure of the financial year, has
impacted the business operations to some extent due to disturbance in supply chain at
vendor’s end, reduced availabﬁh‘ty of labour and non-supply of oxygen for industrial purposes
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(i)

{iii}

in the first quarter of the financial year 2021-22, The Company has evaluated the impact of this
pandemic on its business operations and financial position using internal and external sources
of information, including economic forecasts and estimates from market sources, and based on
its review of current indicators of future economic conditions, there is no significant impact on
carrying amount of the assets due to impairment and on its financial results for the year ended
31 March 2021. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given
the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be
different in future from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements,
The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Revenue and cost estimation for construction contracts

The revenue recognition pertaining to construction contracts are determined on proportionate
completion method based on actual construction contract costs incurred till balance sheet date
and total budgeted construction contract costs. An estimation of total budgeted construction
contract cost involves making various assumptions that may differ from the actual
developments in the future. These include delays in execution due to unforeseen reasons,
inflation rate, future material rates, future labour rates etc. The estimates/assumptions are
made considering past experience, market/inflation trends and technological developments
etc. All such estimates/ assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Current taxes and deferred taxes
Significant judgement is required in determination of taxability of certain incomes and
deductibility of certain expenses during the estimation of the provision for income taxes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and carry forward of
unused tax losses and tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit would be
available against which such deferred tax assets could be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
optimisation strategies.
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Note 3: Trade receivables

EIEMAEZE T L A B M

" Current i Nows cuerent Cuitrent ™ 7 M- i:nrﬂhi_-"‘ :
Trade receivables (at amortised cost)
- Considered good - Unsecured 401.50 11656.13 1087.11 8076.40

‘Tofal trade receivables 401.50 11856,13 1087.11 8076.40

() The Company was incorporaled as a special purpose vehicte for inplementation of a project/order awarded to the Company under a contract entered into with ULP, Jal
Nigam, Agra and Natlonal Mission for Clean Ganga under the Namami Gange Prograsune, ‘The preject is on hybrid annuity PPP basls, according to which 40% of EFC
value will be paid by customer during the construction period and balance 60% wili be pald during Q&M period of 15 years alongwilh interest,

Note 4 : Deferred tax assels

S Asat
CI-Map-2l T 3-Mar20

As

Deferred tax asseis 273 18.15
Deferred tax fiabililies .

Net deferred tax assets/Hiabilitios) 27.31 18,15

(i) Movement in deferred tax balances

For the year ended 31 1arcn 2021

“Recognised in

Opening balace - profit or 1(,_._,-5,'--,;E“fc_"*;"l”'.""‘l- in0ci

“Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets/(Habilitles)

Liabilities and provisicns tax deductille only «pon payment

~ Labour welfare cess 18.15 916 - 2723
Nel deferred tax assets/(liabilitics) 18.15 9,16 - 27,31

Yor the year cnded 31 March 2020

Recognised Jn
= profit or Joss

. Opuening balance

Tax effect of items constituting deferred lax assets/(liabilities)
Unutilised fax losses 21 {0.21} B -
Liabilities and provisions tax deductilble only upon payment

- Labour welfare cess . 1815 - 18.15
Nel deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 0.21 17.94 - 18.15

Mote 5: Tncome tax balances

©oo A8 at 3p-har-21

_ s L L AR AL EMar2D
“Current ™= Non cwrent T Crarent T 0 Nons eugrent

Income {ax assets
Tax refund receivable {net) - 0.69 -
- 0.69 - .

Tnconte lax Habilities
Provision for income tax (net) 14.34 - 43.77
14.34 - 43.77 -
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Note 6 ; Other assels

} U AsAtIbMael
 Current

“Asal 3-Mar-20

Monr currenl - None cirrent -
Advances to suppliers - - 0.16 -
Advances Lo related patties (refer note 21) 148.07 - 930.32 -
Indirect tax and duties recoverable 575.90 - 353.95 -
Prepaid expenses 7.80 - 89,95 1.48
Due from customers under constraction contracts [see {1) below) 2450154 - - -
Other recoverables 49.57 - - -
Total other assels 3231.88 ~ 1374.32 148

{i

Contract balances

..;‘“ "
1-Mar-20

. ',«'\s.m .
- 3il-Mar-21

Contract assets

- Amounts due from customers under consiruction contracts

2450.54

Contract Habilities

- Amounts clue to customers under construction cantracis
- Advance frem customers

747,11

620.68 1253.35

(a) Contract assels are initially recognised for revenue earned but not billed pending successful achievement of milestones. Upoa achievement of milestones and billing,

()

(c

contracl assets are reclassified 1o trade receivaldos. A trade receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is billect or the cuslomer and
which become due enconditionally (i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration & due), Refer note 3(3) for cred it terms.

Contract cosls incurred 1o dale plus recagnised profits less recognised losses is compared with the progress billings raised en the cuslomer - any surplus is considered
a5 contract assets and shown as amounts due from customers under constructlon contracts, whereas any shortfall is considered as contract liabilities and shown as lhe
amounts duc to customers under construction comracts. Amounts received before e related work s performed is consitered as contract Babilities and is shown as
advances from cuslomers,

Significant changes in contracl asseds and liabifitles:

Contract fiabllities (Ameunl due to customers under constrction contracts) changed 1o Contract assets (Amount due from cuslomess under conslruction coniracls)
during the year is due to ihe reason that against the billing done during 1he year, the revenue recagnised In accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenree frow Conttacts with
Chustowers is higher,

Decrease in contract liabililies (Advances from Customers) is mainty ausibutable to adjustment of mobilsation advances against billings.
Revenne recognised in relation to contract Habilities;

The feilowing table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current seporting period refates to carried-forward contract tabitities and how much relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

Year ended - ended

U A-Mar21 U B Mar20
137378 1253.35

Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods - -

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabitity balance at the beginning of Lhe period

Note 7 : Cash and cash equivalents

As ot 31-Mar-21 Ay at 31-Mar-20. -]

At amortised cost

Balances willy banks in cusrent accounls

124,23

61.75

"Total cash and cash equivalents

124,23

61.75
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Note 8: Share capital

Lo ASMEHAMARRE i L s af ARMan
- Number of shares 502 o Amaunt T Namber of shares 7050
AUTHORISED
Lguity shares of 21 each 15,00.30,000 1500.30 15,00,30,060 1504.30
Preference shazes of 2 1 each 70,000 0.70 70,000 0.70
1501.00 150100
1SSULED
Equity shares of T1 each 13,50,36,000 1350.30 13,50,30,000 1350.30
SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
Equity shares of T T each, fully paid up 13,50,30,000 1350.30 13,50,30,000 135030

(i} Movements in equity share capital

T Ao “Nansher of shy S Am
As a1 31 March 2019 30,000 0.30
Issued during the year 13,50,00,000 1350.00
Ag at 31 March 2020 13,50,30,000 1350,30
Movement during the year - -
As al 31 March 2021 13,50,30,000 1350.30

(ii) Terms and rights attached to equily shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of 21/~ per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled lo one vote per share, The Campany declares and
pays dividends In Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direclors Is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeling.

I the event of lguidation of the Company, the lolders of equity shares are enlitled 1o recelve the remaining assets of the Company, after meeting all Habilities and
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharehold ing,

(iif) Pretails of shares held by the holding company, fis subsidiaries and associates

Asat3i-MarZl T As e 3RMan2) ¢

Numberof shares - % hotding -~ Number of shares = 250 'M.-Ih_r_:l_cﬁi'nig

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limiled (Holding Company) 13,56,30,000 100% 13,50,30,000,00 100%

{iv) Details of sharcholders holbding more than 5% shares in {le Company

" Asat F-Mar2t, CrAsal¥-Mar20 .

T Nmdber of shaves 507 % holding 2 Number of shates 5 0 8
B

Triveni Engineering & Industries Lissiled (Holding Company) 13,50,30,000 100% 13,50,30,000.00 100%

Nofe 9 : Other equity

As al 3-Mae21 " As al 31-Mar-20,

Retained earnings 136411 755.15

Totak other equity 1364.11 755,15

(i} Relained carnings

To¥earended U Year ended

: T : R : S s Podt-Mar2l T 3Mar-20
Opening, balance 755.15 (13.34)
Profit/{loss) fas the year 608.96 768.29
Other comprehensive inceme for the year, net of income Lax - -
Closing balance . 1364,11 755.15

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity sharchofders In accordance with the requirement of the Companies
Act, 2013,
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Note 10 : Non-current borrowings

- Ag 1 31Mar-20

L Asal3-Marz

perent maturilios |3 Nob- cuterént

Seeured- zl amortsed cost

Term loans from banks 21242 482268 - -

Unsecured- at amoriised cost

Loans from related pardies {refer note 21} ~ 2000.00 - 1510.00
212,42 6822.68 - 151000

Less: Amount disclosed under the head "Other financial liabilities- current” (21242

(refer note 13) 42) ) . )

Total non-current borrowings v 6822.68 - 151000

{i} Interest rate : At MCLR plus applicable sproad, the inlerest rate as on 31,03.2021 range between 8% 1o 8,25% per annu,

(ii) Repayment terms of loan:

{a) Term foan from banks : 48 equal quarlerly installments from December 2021 to September 2033

{b) Louns from related parties : In view of Axis Bank Lid (‘Lender to the Project’) stipulation that loan from Triveni Englneering & Industries Limited {Hotding Company'y
to the Company cannot be repaid by the Company til the loan from Leiter to the Project Is fully repaid, repayment terms of loan from Holding Company will be decided

mutuatly between the Company and Holding Company after satisfactory construction of the Project subject to the approval of the Lender to the Project,

(i) Notare of Secarity:

{3) First chasge by way of hypothecation of ali the fixed assets / movable assets and current assels of Lhe Company (present & future), other than projecl assels, excepl lhose

acquired out of free flow of the Company in operation phase.

b) Plecige of 40509000 shares (30% of tolak equity shares) of the Company hetd by the Helding Company.
I qully pany Y pany.

(c) Unconditional & irreovacabile Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company

Note 11 : Other llabilities

" As 2l 31-Mar2) _ ‘ As Al H-Mar-20 :

Carrent " Non-cerrent Crierent 0 5 Now= earrent
Revenue received in advance
Amount due to customers under consiruction contracts [refer nole 6{1)) - - 747.11 .
Other advances
Advances from cuslomers 626.68 - 125335 -
Others
Statutory remillances 26.43 - 80.50 -
Provision for brilding & other construction workers' welfare cess - 108.51 " 7212
Miscellancous other payables 4.20 - 1.00 -
"Total other labilitics 657,30 108.51 2{181.97 72,12

Note 12 : Trade payables

Ay at M-Mar-21

Cureent Non- current

CAsatA:-Margy

Cwrent 77 Non- current”

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding <ues of micro enterprises and
smail enlerprises (refer nole 26)

- Total cvistanding dues of creditors other than
inicro enterprises and small enterprises

5067.52 .

4787.28 -

Telal {rade payables

5{067.52 -

4787.28 “

Note 13 : Other financial Habilities

S AS A H-Mar-21 -,

U Currend

o UASM3L-MAEZ) e
i Nons current.

Current "=+ 5 - Non- cttrrent
At amorlised cost
Current madurilies of fong-term borrowings (refer note 10} 21242 - - -
Accrued interest 44.56 ~ 18.62 -
Total other financial liabilitles 256.98 ~ 18.62 o
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Nole 14 : Revenue from operations

- Year l.;._llulud g : “I'I‘.'_.ii.l"j_k’_l'ldcl

L RieMar21 BlMar
Conslruction contracl revenue 936381 11253.98
Tolal revenue from operations ' 9263.81 11253.98

(i) Unsatlsficd fong-term construclion contracts:
‘Ehe transaction price alfocaied to contract (viz, & project awarded nnder Namami Gange Programme) that is partially unsatisfied
peried of its revenue recagnition, is as follows:

as at reporling date alongwith expecled

e ‘ Year e.hd:ud
7 3leMare2d -

As a1 31Mar-20

Witltin one year 1786.11 8412.79
More than one year - 218711
Total 1786.11 10599.90

(i) Revenue recognised In profit or loss is same as conlract price.

Nele 15 1 Other income

. Year ended;

CH-Mar2t

Year eivded
B1-Mar-20

Interest income from Bank deposiis (at amortised costy 0.13 244
Iinterest Income on income tax refund .03 -
‘Fotal other income 0.16 244

MNote 16 : Employee benefils expense

. Yearended

Salaries and wages

31-Mae-21 -

1.60

- Year ended

“31-Mar-20;

‘Total employee benefils expense

1,60

Note 371 Finance tosts

Yearended _i’e@_:r ended
BT ME2T R 3 Man-g0 e
Interest on berrowings 395.19
Other interost expense 1140 143
Total finance costs 406,59 28,01

Node 18 : Other expenses

s . Yearended - -
U BteMap21

Year ended

_ D 31Mar20
Civil construclion charges 441546 (558,94
Testing and analysis fee . - 145
Travetling and conveyance - 0.41
Rates and laxes 61.24 120,43
Insurance 13.97 13.04
Legal and professional expenses 97.91 84.16
Payment lo Auditors (see (i) below) 4.00 0.50
Bank charges 29.53 28.72
Corporate social responsibility expenses {see {ii) below) 10.85 -
Miscellaneous expenses 5.11 5.07
Tatal othoer expenses 463807 681272




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Noges te the Financial Stalements for the vear ended March 33, 2021
(Al anrgnnds e 3 lakihis, wnless atlerise stulvd)

(i) Detail of payment to auditors

Cear guded
. “Mar-21 i
Slatwlery audit fee 200 050

Tax awdit fee 200 -
Tolal payment to auditors 4,00 050

(ii) Corporale Social Responsibility (CSR)

(1) The Company has incurred CSR expenses towards Contribution to Printe Minister Natlonal Relief Fund as specified in Schedule V11 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(1) Detail of CSR expenses:

“Year ended

Yearended .

CBeMarai U0 31 Manad

(n} Gross amaunt required 1o Be spent during the year 10.85 -
(I Ament approved by the Board lo be spent during the year 10.85 -

{c) Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construclion/acquisition of any assel ) - -

{ii} Purposes other than (i) above

Contribution to Prime Minister Nationai Relief Fund 10.85 -
10.85 -

Note 19 : Income fax expense

Year paded - " Year ended -,
TRLMar-21 10 3 aMar20

Incene fax recognised in profit or loss

Current tax

Inrespect of the current year 212.31 276.34
1 respect of the earlier years 6.68 -
‘Tedal current tax expense 218.99 276,34

Deferred tax

In respect of current year erigination and reversal of temperary differences {9.16) (17,94)
Total deferred fax expense {9.16) (17.94)
Tolal income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 209.83 258.40

Reconviliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's lax fate:

CYearended . Yearended
3-Mae-21 - -7 31-Mar-20

Profit/ (loss) before tax 818.79 1026.6
Income tax expense calculated al 25.168% (inciuding surcharge and education cess) (2019-20: 25.168%) 206.07 258.40
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 6.11 .
Effect of tax concessions (273} 0.01
Effect of changes in estimales related to prior years 0.38 -
Total income tax expense/(credit) recognised in profil or logs 209,83 258.40

The current and deferred tax charge has been provided considering the option of lower tax rates available under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as introduced
by The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Aci, 2019,

Nuote 20 : Earnings/{loss) per share

Yeargnded . ':_ : Year gnded, ‘,

3LMar21 0 31Marg
Peafit/ (Joss) for the year atlributable to owners of the Company A] 608,96 768.29
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS (8] 13,50,30,000 7/48,93,388
Basic earnings/ (loss) per share (face value of 2 1 per share) [A/B] 045 1.03

Diluted earnings/ (loss) per share (face value of 2 1 per share) {A /5] 045 1.03
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Note 21 ; Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exista
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(if) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and cuistanding balances

Transactions with TEIL, Holding Company
Purchases and receiving services 8752.10 11141.70
Interest expense 38712 26.58

Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of party (net
of expenses incurred by party on behalf of the Company) on {(107.39) (62.59)
reimbursable basis

Issue of equity share capital - 1350.00
Short term loan received and repaid back 1530.00 -
Loan received 490.00 1430.00

OQutstanding balances of TEIL, Holding Company

Receivable 148.07 930.32
Payable 7088.29 6315.46
Guarantees [see (iv) below| 10000.00 9915.00

Related party transactions stated above are inclusive of applicable taxes

(iv) TEIL, Holding Company has provided a corporate guarantee amounting to ¥ 10000 lakhs
(31 March 2020: ¥ 9915 lakhs) in connection with a loan agreed to be granted by the lender to the
Company. The Company has availed loan of ¥ 5100 lakhs during the year (tll 3T March 2020: ¥ Nij)
under such lending arrangement.

(v} Terms & conditions
{a} Loan from the Holding Company are given at normal commercial terms & conditions at prevailing
market rate of interest,
(b) Purchases from related parties, including rendering/availment of service, are made on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. All other transactions were made on
normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.
{c} The outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash, The
Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
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MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Lhe Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(AN angonnis in € lakhs, nuless otherioise slated)

Note 22 : Capital management

The primary objective of the capital management is lo maximize sharehokder value and to keep leverage within reasonable limits for financial
prudence.

The capital structure of the Company has been agreed will the lender and therefore debt from {he lender and equity/loans from the holding
company wilt be availedt as per the siructure agreed wilh the fender. Accordingly, the Company intends lo avail equity/ loan from the holding
company to the extent of ¥ 33.50 crore and a Joan of 2 100.00 crore from the lender. As at 3 March 2021, the Company has availed ¥ 33.50 crore from
the holding company by way of equity infusion/loan and loan of 51 crore from lender.

Note 23 : Financial risk management

The Company’s {inancial liabitities comprise of horrowings and trade payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise of trade receivabies and
cash and bank balances, The Company's activities expose it mainly to liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. The menitoring and management of
such risks is undertaken by the senior management of the Company.

Liquidity risk

The Company has managed its liquidity mainly from loan/equity infusion from the holding company and advance received from customer. The
Company intends to fund ils working capital requirements and constraction costs, to be received on defarred payment basis, from equity/foan from
the holding compuny, borrowing from the lender and milestone payments from customer.

Table hereunder provides the cutrent ratios of the Company as at the period end ;

O BIeMAnRE L 3 kMan20

Tolal currend assots 3757.61 252318
Total currend Labilities 5996.14 693164
Currend ralio 0.63 0306

Maturities of financial labitities:
The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturity for its financinl liabilities witly agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the
{ables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financiat liabilities. The contzachzal maturity is Dased on the earliesl dide on
which the Company may be required to pay.

: _:Carryh_l.g_ -
LRIMoung

Slyear ... i-Byears - 3Byears . >5years® . Total 1

As at 31 March 2021
Borrowings 212.50 850.00 850.00 5187.50 7100.00 703510
Trade payables 5067.52 - - - 5067.52 5067.52
Other financial liabilities 44.56 - - - 44,56 44,56
) ) 5324.58 850,00 850,00 5187.50  12212.08 12147,18

As at 31 March 2020
Borrowings - - - 1510.00 1510.00 1510,00
Trade payables ' 4787.28 - - - arE7s 4787.28
Olher financial linbilities 18.62 - - - 18.62 18.62
4805.90 - - 1510.430 6315.90 6315.90

“ Refer note 10(ii)(b) for repayment terms of loans from related parties

Credit visk

The vontracl being executed by the Company has been entered inlo with UP Jat Nigam, Agra and National Mission for Clean Ganga (NMCG) under
the approved [lagship Namami Gange programme. As per the terms of the contracl, escrow account mechanism has been prescribed for payment 10
the Company and NMCG is required to fund the escrow account with an amount equivalent 1o next 2 payment milestone at all times during the
construetion period and O&M period. Thus, the credid risk to the Company is moderale,

Market risk - interest rate risk

The project under implementation by the Company is on hybrid annulty PPP basis, according 1o which 40% of EPC vatue will be paid by customer
during the construction period and balance 60% wil be paid during O&M period of 15 years alongwilh interest computed at SBI one year MCLR
plus 3%. It is therelore critical for the Company to secure interest rale on bortowings wt appropriate level so as to optimise interest gains,

During construction period:

During construction period, loats of 2 100 crore is being avaited progressively fo fund the project. The interest rate on the foan is lnked (0 MCLR and
is, therefore, subject to changes in MCLR, In view of shorier period of loan availment during construction period, the impact of changes in MCLR on
interest is not likely to be significant.

Post constraction period:

Interest receivable [rom the customer is linked to MCLR of SBI and hence inferest would vary due io the changes in MCLR. The interest on the bank
borrowings are also linked with the MCLR so that fluctualions in interest recaivable from the customer are adequately hedged, However, interest on
bank borrowings are linked to MCLR of Axis bank and to (hat extent 100% hedging may not be achieved. Interest on borrowings fron: the Holding
Company is also linked with MCLR of SBI providing ful! hedging on changes in interest rates.

e
Tﬁi(g;;\

A ‘..- \\
'Y

o




MATHURA WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financinl Stalements for the year ended March 37, 2021

(Al mnounts in & lakhis, unless otherevise stoled)

Note 24 : Fair value measurements

i)

(i)

Financial instruments by category

S-Mar2E - D 31-Mar-20 -
VIR Amortised
. g R 1 1 NENC
Financial assets
Trade receivables - 12257.63 - 9163.51
Cash and bank balances - 124.23 - 61.75
Total financial assets - 12381.86 - 9225.26
Financial liabilities
Berrowings - 703510 - 1510.00
Trade payables - 5(67.52 - 4787.28
Other financial liabilities - 44,56 - 18.62
Total financial labilities - 1214718 - 631590

Fair value of financial assets and Habilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
Except as detailed in the following table, the management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair values

BMar2E o 31Man2e

e ‘Carrying R
amount -

“Fairyalue ..

air valye -

Financial assets
Trade receivables - - 9163.51 B087.61

- - 9163.51 8087.61

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at 31 March 2023
Financial assets
Trade receivables - -

As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets
Trade receivables - - 8087.61 8087.61
. - 8087.61 8087.61

The fair values for trade receivables which are expected to be settled after twelve months (including those which are within
the operating cycte) are computed based on discounted cash flows, They are classified as level 3 fair vatues in the fajr value
hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterpasty credit risk. The carrying amounts of the
remaining trade receivables and trade payables are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term
nature,
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Note 25 : Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Based on management analysis, there are no material commitments, contingent liabitities and contingent assels as al 31 March 2621

and 31 March 2020.

Note 26 : Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Smalt enterprises
Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Smali and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year; as at the end of the year

{i) Principal amount (refer note 12)

(i) Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Smaft and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the - .
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,

The amount of inferest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which bas been
paid but heyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under - -
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of inferest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accaunting year; and

The amounl of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues above are aclually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deduclible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006

Note 27 : Comparatives
The Company has reclassified certain items of financials of comparative year to conform to this year's classification, however, impact

of these reclassification are not material.

Note 28 : Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 19 June 2021 subject 1o approvai of

sharcholders.

As per our report of even date aftached

For § § Kothari Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Mathura Wastewater Management Private Limited
Fim's registration number : 900 5@”4 & e
7L W
Vijay Kafimar /:"’.“‘ Wil pELHL b7 ) Nikhil Sawhney
Partner g / Director Director
Membership No. 092671 : \ / g DIN: 00029028 DEN: 08155585
Piace : . h ZE G
ace: NE—W Dg} \
ﬁl Garg /‘Siﬁ%ngh
Cro Company Secretary

Date 19 June 2021




\ Chitresh Gupta & Associates
‘ \ Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
THE MEMBERS OF GAURANGI ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Gaurangi Enterprises Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the period from 02
July 2020 to 31 March 2021, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period
from 02 July 2020 to 31 March 2021.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specificd
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Head Office : U-119A, Shakarpur, New Delhi-110092, Mobile : 99103 67918 -\\i

Branch Office : LG-CS-24 B, Ansal Plaza (Opp. Dabur India Ltd.), Vaishali, Ghaziabad, U.P., Pin - 201010, NCR, India
Phone: +91- 120 - 4121942, E-mail: chitresh.gupta@gstexperts.net, gupta_chitresh@yahoo.in



Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun ting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal comtrol
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and o ther
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the QOrder, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B".

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the Act,
in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
paid/provided any managerial remuneration during the period. Accordingly the provisions of Section
197(16) of the Act are not applicable for the period.
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position,

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 017079N

C A

CA Chitresh Gupta

Partner
M. No. 098247
UDIN: 2109824?AAAAUU%"

Place: Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021



Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of Gaurangi Enterprises Limited on the financial statements as of and
for the period 02 July 2020 to 31 March 2021

g |8

10.

1.

12.

13.

The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting winder
clause (iii)(a), clause (iii)(b) and clause (iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans nor made any investments, provided any guarantee or sec urity.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any de posits
and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income Tax with the
appropriate authority. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company’s
operation did not give rise to any dues on account of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues. There were no undisputed statutory dues amounts outstanding and
payable as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no dues of Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and Goods and Services Tax as at
March 31, 2021 on account of any dispute.

The Company has not taken any loan or borrowing from Financial Institutions, Banks and Government and
has not issued any debenture. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans during the period. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance
with generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the period.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.




14. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the period.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or pewrsons
connected with him.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 017079N

CA Chitresh Gupta
Partner

M. No. 098247
UDIN: 21098247AAAAUUT7919

Place: Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021



Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gaurangi Enterprises Limnited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the period from 02 July 2020 to 31 March 2021.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essexntial
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, materfal misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 017079N

CA Chitresh Gupta
Partner

M. No. 098247
UDIN: 21098247AAAAUU7919

Place: Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021



GAURANGI ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(Al amonrids in T thousands, unless othervise staled)

ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Investmenl property 2 1761864
Total non-current assets 17618.64|
Current assets
Financial assets
i Cash and cash equivalents 3 (a) 200,12
ii, Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3(b) 180000
i, Other financial assets 4 20,07
Total current assets 202619
Total assels 19644.83
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equily share capital 5 20000.00
Other equity 6 (372.02)
Total equity 1962798
LIABILITIES
Current labilities
Financial liabilities
i Trade payables 7
{a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises .
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.80
Income tax liabilities (net) 8 5,05
Total current liabilities . 16.85)
Total liabilities 16.85|
Total equity and liabilities 19644.83)

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

d on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ngi Enterprises Limited

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For
Chartered Accountants Ga
Firm's registration number : 017079

(L

Chitresh Gupta De Atul Aggarwal
Partner Direc! Director
Membership No. 98247 DIN : DIN: 06875769

Place : \AA&)‘?) PBCE:NGK&KW‘PQ

i
Date : 18 June 2021 \ =

Place %9@.@,0




GAURANGI ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2021
(AN ammownts in < thowsands, wless otherwize stated)

Forthe perlod from
Note No. 02 July 2020 1o
F1 March 2021
Other income 9 20,07
Total income 20,07
Expenses
Other expenses 10 A87.04
Total expenses 337.04'
I'rofit/(loss) before tax (366.97)
Tax expense:
- Current tax 11 5.05
- Deferred tax 11 .
Total tax expense 5.05]
Profit/(loss) for the period (372.02)
Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
A (i) Income lax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or lass
B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
B (ii) Income tax relating Lo items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax =l
Total comprehensive income for the period (372.02)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥ 1 each
Basic 12 (0.02)
Diluted 12 (0.02)

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date altached
For Chitresh Gupta & Associates Fora

Chartered Accountants Ga
Firm's registration number : () 7079N

w /0% '
Chitresh Gupta

Partner

Membership No. 98247
Place : E.QQF

Date : 18 June 2021

on behalf of the Board of Directors of
giEnterprises Limited

-

Atul Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 06875769

Place: h)) 0\&{\1 .,p)



GAURANGI ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended March 31, 2021

(Al mmonnts in ¥ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Eok the period fror

02 July 2020 £ o
31 March 2022 |

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax (366.97)
Adjustments for

Interest income (20.0Z2)
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables 11.80
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (375.241)
Income tax (paid)/refund -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities {375.24)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment property (17618.64)
Decrease/ (increase) in deposits with banks (1800.00)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (19418.6)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share captal 20000.00
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities 20000.00
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 206.12
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (refer note 3(a)) 206.32‘

There are no changes in liabilities arising from financing activities during the year, including both changes from cash flows and non-cash

changes.

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : Bl?U?QN

Chifresh Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 98247
. 12}
Place : 9&@'

Date : 18 June 2021

Debajit i Atul Aggarwal
Director Director
DIN : 025 DIN: 06875769

place : 00 \ e (U - P_)



GAURANGI ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended March 31, 2021
(Al wmounis i £ thousands, unless otherise staled)

A. Equity share capital
Equity shares of % 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Liguity shares issued during the period zmuo.nol

As at 31 March 2021 20000.00{

B, Other equity

Resenesand surplis

- T'otal other egquily
Retained earnings

Loss for the period (372.02) (372.02)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - ki
Total comprehensive income for the period (372.02) (372.02)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (372.02) (372.02)

The accompanying notes 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For agd on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Ga
Firm's regits:tration number : 017079N

Chitresh Gupta !
Partner
Membership No. 98247

Place 3 ® \
e \
Date : 18 June 2021 \ 2

Debajit Bagchi Atul Aggarwal
Director Director
DIN: 02591320 DIN: 06875769

d&o@ \‘P.) Place NQ\&.C\QU -P o )




GAURANGI ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

Corporate information

Gaurangi Enterprises Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated on 2 July
2020 and domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns
100% of equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located a t A-44,
Hosiery Complex, Phase II extension, Noida, Uttar Pradesh - 201305.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

(©)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.




GAURANGI ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

(d)

(£)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and, where applicable, borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule 11 along with residual values of 5%.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the




GAURANGI ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

(i)

(1)

(iv)

end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding; the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, wnless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. If it bec omes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period (except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made).

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

(g) Financial assets

)

(if)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
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* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI.

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(@)

(if)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
*+ those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
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@)

G

(k)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FV'ITPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVIPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

*  Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortisecl cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the Finance costs' line item.

(iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in

equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying

amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Pinancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methad, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing; flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance
with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above,
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(1)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Com pany
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




GAURANGI ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2021

(All ammounts in T thousamds, unless otherwise stated)
Note 2: Investment property
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount .
Additions 17618.04

Deletions {
Closing gross carrying amount 17618.64

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment -
Depreciation charge/impairment losses -
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment -
Net carrying amount 17618.64

(i) Description about investment property
The Company’s investment property consist of parcel of land at (a) Digrauli, District Saharanpur, Uttar Pradesh, India;
and (b) Shehjadpur, Pargana Deoband, District Saharanpur, Uttar Pradesh, India

(i) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
There is no amount related to investment property which is recognised in statement of profit and loss .

(iii) Restrictions on realisability and contractual obligations

Though the transfer of titles in the name of the Company is pending in respect of free hold land having carrying amount
of T 950 thousands, the Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and it is under no
contractual obligations to either purchase, construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and

(iv) Fair value

The investment property owned by the Company is situated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings areas. The prope rty
was purchased during the year at the circle rate from the Holding Company. In view of slowdown in real estate and
industrial activities, the fair value cannot be determined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar propertics
(including size) in the vicinity of the subject property.

Note 3: Cash and bank balances

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in current account 206.12

Total cash and cash equivalents 206.12

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in fixed deposits 1800.00

Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1800.00

Note 4: Other financial assets

31-Mar-21

Current Non- current

At amortised cost

Accrued interest 20.07 -

Total other financial assets 20.07 -

e
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(AN arnounts in & thowsands, unless otheroise stated)

Note 5: Equity share capital
31-Mar-21

Number of
shares

Amount

AUTHORISED
Equity shares of 21 each 2,00,00,000.00 20000.0:0

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of 1 each 2,00,00,000.00 20000.000)]

(i) Movements in equity share capital

Equity shares issued during the period 2,00,00,000
As at 31 March 2021 2,00,00,000 20000.00'

(ii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of ¥ 1/- per share, The holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the
Company, after meeting all liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates
31-Mar-21

Number of

W holding
shares 5

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding
Company)

2,00,00,000

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
31-Mar-21

Number of

Y holding
shares 5

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding

c 2,00,00,000 100%
ompany)

Note 6: Other equity

Retained earnings (372.02)
Total other equity (372.02)

(i) Retained earnings

For the period from

02 July 2020 to
31 March 2021
Profit/ (loss) for the period (372.02)
;Closing balance (372.02)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed to its equity-shareholders in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Aot ary,
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Note 7 : Trade payables

31-Mar-21

Current Non- current

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises (refer note 18)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

; 4 11.80 -
enterprises and small enterprises

Total trade payables 11.80 =

Note 8: Income tax balances

31-Mar-21

Current Non- current

Income tax assets
Tax refund receivable (net) 2 3

Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax (net) 5.05 -
5.05 =

Note 9 : Other income

For the period from

02 July 2020 to
31 March 2021

Interest income from bank deposits (at amortised cost) 20.07

Total other income 20.07|

Note 10: Other expenses

For the period from

02 July 2020 to
31 March 2021

Service charges 53.10
Legal and professional expenses . 32.50
Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 11.80
Rates and taxes 286.64
Miscellaneous expenses 3.00
Total other expenses 387.04
(i) Payment to Auditors

For the period from

02 July 2020 to
31 March 2021

Statutory audit fee 11.80
Total payment to auditors : 11.80
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Note 11 : Income tax expense

For the period from
02 July 2020 to

31 March 2021

Current tax 5.05

Deferred tax “

Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 5.05

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

For the period from

020 to
31 March 2021

Profit/ (loss) before tax (366.97)
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (92.36)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 97.41
Total income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 5.05

The income tax charge has been provided considering the option of lower tax rates available under section 115BAA of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, as introduced by The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019.

Note 12: Earnings/(loss) per share

For the period from
02 July 2020 to
31 March 2021

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A]
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B]

Basic earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/B]

Diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of ¥ 1 per share) [A/B]
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Note 13: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL), Holding Company

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place:
(a) Holding Company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Nature of transactions with Related Parties for the period from 02 July 2020 to 31 March 2021

Service charges expense 53.10 53.10
Issue of equity share capital 20000.00 20000.00
Purchase of investment property 16632.00 16632.00
Expenses incurred by the Company on behalf of party (1224.99) (1224.99)

(net of expenses incurred by party on behalf of the
Company) on reimbursable basis

Outstanding balances as at 31 March 2021

Receivables/ Payables - -

(iv) Terms & conditions:
The transactions with related parties, including service charges, are made on terms which are at arm’s length
after taking into consideration market conditions, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof, All other
transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.
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Note 14: Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes total equity of the Company. The primary objective of the capital
management is to maximize shareholder value. The Company does not have borrowings.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. The Com pany
may resort to further issue of capital to fund expansion of business. The Company monitors capital structure through gearing,
ratio which at the end of reporting period was as follows:

31-M ar-21

Trade payables (note 7) 11.80
Total debt 11.80
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 3(a)) (206.12)
Net debt (A) -
Total equity (note 5 & note 6) 19627.98
Total equity and net debt (B) 19627.98
Gearing ratio (A/B) 0%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the period ended 31 March 2021.
The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements,

Note 15: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise of cash and bank
balances. The Company's activities does not expose it to market risk and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity
through internal accruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company.

In view of nascent stage of business, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. The operations of the Company during early stages
of business will be supported by the Holding Company through loans or through equity infusion, as appropriate. The
Company’s financial liabilities comprise of trade payables which is expected to be settled within one year from the end of
reporting year.
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Note 16: Fair value measurements

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments by category

31-Mar-21

Amortised

FVTPL/ FVTOCI

cost

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances - 2006.12
Other financial assets - 20.07!
Total financial assets - 2026.719

Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 11.80

Total financial liabilities - 11.80

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabiliti cs
recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature.
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Note 17: Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assels
Based on management analysis, there are no material commitment, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 2021,

Note 18: Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises
Based on the intimation received by the Company from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Meclium
Linterprises Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting

year; as at the end of the year
(i) Principal amount ™
(i} Interest due on above =

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the -
appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding, the interest specified under the Micro, Small and -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Note 19: Global health pandemic from COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company has
evaluated the impact of this pandemic on its business operations and financial position using internal and external sources of
information, including economic forecasts and estimates from market sources, and based on its review of current indicators of future
economic conditions, there is no significant impact on carrying amount of the assets due to impairment and on its financial resulls for
the year ended 31 March 2021. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated
with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different in future from that estimated as at the date of approval of
these financial statements. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Note 20: Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 18 June 2021 subject to approval of
shareholders.

As per our report of even date attached
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Chartered Accountants G jgés Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of United Shippers & Dredgers Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection, with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility istq read the other information and, in doing
so, consider Whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the ‘Financial Statements, or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.




Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of intemnal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

* " Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going eoncern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cayse-the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern. F’U ]
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¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and of the Financial Stat
hether the Financial St
presentation.

ling the disclosures, and
rep the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

We communicate with those charged with governance
audit and significant audit findings,
audit.

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other that may r bly be though
to bear on our independ and where applicable, related safeguard:
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial St comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial Is over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

¢ <

(g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the Act, in ouropini
and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not paid/provided any/méha ;
remuneration during the year. Accordingly the provisions of Section 197(16) of the Act are not app! E
year.




(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

For R.S. Gupta & Company
Chartered Accountants

Partner

M.No. 093734

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 18,2021
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements™ of our report of

even date to the members of United Shippers & Dredgers Limited on the Financial Statements as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2021

The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a), clause
3(iii)(b) and clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans nor provided any guarantee or security and has not made any investment as
specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits and hence
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company’s operation did not give rise to any dues
on account of income tax, Provident Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs,
Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues. There were no

undisputed statutory dues amounts outstanding and payable as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and Goods and Services Tax as at March 31, 2021 on
account of any dispute.

The Company has not taken any loan or borrowing from Financial Institutions, Banks and Government and has not
issued any debenture. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) or term loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with

generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our
audit. ¢ ¢

\ \

. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the

Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




- In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the mcords' of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,

2013, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by
the applicable Indian accounting standards.

. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the

Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the

Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

- The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For R.S. Gupta & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001216N

Partner

M.No. 093734

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021



Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of United Shippers & Dredgers Limited (“the
Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by Thelnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For R.S. Gupta & Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 001216N

M.No. 093734

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 18, 2021







UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(A amroents Th € Hiousands, wnless otherose stated)

Note No. 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 " 1-Apr-19
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property 2 62,93 62.93 62.93
Financial assets
i. Investments 3 " - "
Total non-current assets 62.93 62.93 62.93
Current assets
Financial assets
i. Cash and cash equivalents 4 0.62 .24 10.30
Total current assets 0.62 6.24 10.30}
Total assets 63.55 69.17 73.23
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital P 4000.00 4000.00  4000.00
Other equity b (8535.07) (B517.65)  (8509.90)
Total equity (4535.07) (4517.65)  (4509.90)
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 7 4562.11 456211 456211
ii. Trade payables 8
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 36.51 14N 21.02
Total current liabilities 4598.62 4586.82  4583.13
Total liabilities 4598.62 4586.82  4583.13
Total equity and liabilities 63.55 69.17 73.23
The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For R.S. Gupta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants United Shippers & Dredgers Limited

Firm's Registration number: 001216N

Partner
Membership No. 093734
Place : Neto De tly)

Date : 18 June 2021

Atul Aggarwal Gﬁ/;:a;a

Director Director
DIN: 0687576 DIN: 02561368

Place }lm (L\(UP Place : N o";clu-c U .0)



UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(A amorents £ thowsands, unless otherise stated )

Note No, 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Other income 9 - 0.13
Total income - 0.13
Expenses
Other expenses 10 17.42 7.88
Total expenses 17.42 7.88
Profit/(loss) before tax (17.42) (7.75)
Tax expense:
- Current tax 11 -
- Deferred tax 11 - -
Tolal tax expense = -
Profit/(loss) for the year (17.42) (7.75)
Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
A (ii) Income tax relating, to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B (i) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - .
Total comprehensive income for the year (17.42) (7.75)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥ 10 each
Basic 12 (0.04) (0.02)
Diluted 12 (0.04) (0.02)

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For R.S. Gupta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants United Shippers & Dredgers Limited
Firm's Registration number: 001216N

e i

Gupta Atul Aggarwal ela Bhalla
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 093734 DIN: 06875769 DIN: 02561368

S $less ki place plorelos (UP) Piace: Nigrolex ([ )

Date : 18 June 2021




UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amonnts in 2 thousands, unless othorioise stated)

[ 831:Mar-21 7 3i-Mar20

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) before tax (17.42) (7.75)
Adjustments for :

Net gain on sale of investments - (0.13)
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables 11.80 3.69
Cash generated from /(used in) operations (5.62) (4.19)
Income tax (paid)/refund -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (5.62) (4.19)

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments 013
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

- 0.13
Cash flows from financing activities - -
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5.62) (4.06)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 4) 6.24 10.30
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 4) 0.62 6.24

There are no changes in liabilities arising from financing activities during the year, including both changes from
cash flows and non-cash changes.

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For R.S. Gupta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants United Shippers & Dredgers Limited
Firm's Registration number: 001216N

upta j Atul Aggarwal ﬁ:ﬁ;lla

chi
Partner : Director Director
Membership No: 093734 DIN: 06875 DIN: 02561368

7
Place:: News De Place : Nbl'j:( W 0 Place : \J 0\' C!b& (U! P)

Date : 18 June 2021
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UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al antonnts tn & Mousmnds, unless otheraise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of 2 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Movement during the year

As at 1 April 2019 4000.00

As at 31 March 2020

4000.00

Movement during the year

As at 31 March 2021

4000.00|

B. Other equity

and surplus

Retained earnings

Total.other equity

Balance as at 1st April 2019 (8509.90) (8509.90)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (7.75) (7.75)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (7.75) (7.75)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (8517.65) (8517.65)
Profit/(loss) for the year (17.42) (17.42)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (17.42) (17.42)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (8535.07) (8535.07)

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For R.S. Gupta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration number: 001216N

\/.
4

Partner
Membership No, 093734
Place : AMews De bl

Date : 18 June 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
United Shippers & Dredgers Limited

Atul Aggarwal

Director
DIN: 0687576

Place I\I D"C Ca (U '.P

ﬁlJ;;thlL)-:bL'

Director
DIN: 02561368

Place : Mo‘,(,lc.(U )




UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

Corporate information

United Shippers & Dredgers Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at House no. 100,
Street no. 2, Uttranchal Enclave, Kamalpur, Burari, Delhi - 110084.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation and presentation

(i)

(ii)

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2020 were prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. The
date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April 2019. Refer note 20 for the details of first-time adoption
exemptions availed by the Company and an explanation of how the transition from previous
GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash
flows.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under historical cost
convention except for investments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for value in use in Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets (see note

1(b)).

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.
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UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements tor the year ended March 31, 2021

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. When an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so however that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are not capitalised during extended periods in which active
development of qualifying assets is suspended. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.




UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

()

(f)

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs and, where applicable, borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule 1T along with residual values of 5%.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
investment properties recognised as at 1 April 2019 (transition date) measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of investment properties.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is measured at the
present value of cash flows estimated (o settle the present obligation. When some or all of the
economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(ii) A contingent liability is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period (except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made).

(ili) A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements, however, is disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an assel.

(iv) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

F



UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

(8)

Financial assects

(i)

(ii)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
*  those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For assets in the nature of debt instruments, this will depend on
the business model.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVT'OCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss, A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within
other gains/ (losses) in the period in which it arises.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

}




UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Noles Lo the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i)

(ii)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVIPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

* Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
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UNITED SHIPPERS & DREDGERS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

(i)

()

(k)

are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

(iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial liability.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at the measurement date;
* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

]
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

0

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance
with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less and which carry insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Note Z: Investment property

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 62.93 62.93 62,93
Additions

Deletions

Closing gross carrying amount 6293 6293 62.93

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impairment .
Depreciation charge/impairment losses

Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment

Net carrying amouni 62,93 62.93 h2.93

(i) Description about investment property
The Company’s investment property consist of Land at Khatauli, District Muzaffarnagar, Uttar Pradesh, India.

(1) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
There is no amount relate

to investment properly which is recognised in statement of profit and loss,

(iif) Restrictions on realisability and contra

ual abligations
The Company has no restrictions on the

realisability of its investment property and it is under no contractual obligations to either purchase, construct
or develop investment properly or for repairs, mainienance and enhancements.

{iv) Fair value

The investment property owned by the Company is situated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings areas. In view of slowdown in real estate and
industrial activities, the fair value cannol be determined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar properties (including size) in the vicinity

Note 3: Investments

Al Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) (refer note 16)

Unquoted Investments (fully paid-up)
Investments in Equily Instruments

Nil (31 March 2021 ; 1 April 201%: 132) Equity shares of 2 100/ - each of Tech
I'rade Consultants Limited . :

Total non-current investments

Total non-current investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments .
Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investment -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investmenis -
Aggpregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 01-Apr-19

At amortised cost

Balance with bank in current account

- 5,62 9.81
Cash on hand 0.62 0.62 0.49
Total cash and cash equivalents 0,62 6.24 10.30
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Note 5: Equity share capital

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 01-Apr-19

Number of Number of Number of
Amount Amount Amount
shares shares shares

AUTHORISED

Equity shares of 2 10 each 5,00,000 5000.00 500,000 5000,00 500.00 5000.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 4,00,000 4000.00 4,00,000 4000.00 100.00

(i) Movements in equity share capital

Asat 1 April 2019
Movement during the year

4,00,000 4000.00

As at 31 March 2020 4,00,000 4000.00

Movement during the year

As at 31 March 2021 4,00,000 4000.00)

(ii) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

I'he Company has only one class of equily shares with a par value of 2 10/- per share. The holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share
The Company declares and pays dividends In Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors s subject to the approval of the
sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, alter meeting all
liabilities and distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion lo their shareholding.

(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 01-Apr-19
Number of % holding :\l.lll'lllt.'l‘ of ¥ halding Number of #% holding
shares shares shares
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited, Holding 4,00,000 100% - 0% - 0%
Subhadra Trade and Finance Limiled, !Iuhlill}_'l_Cumputl\ - 0% 4,00,000 100% 4,00,000 100%

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 01-Apr-19

Number of Number of Number of ]
shares Raltiug shares olding shares holdiag
Triveni Engineering, & Industries Limited, Holding 4,00,000 100% - 0% - 0%
Subhadra Trade and Finance Limited, Holding Company - 0% 4,00,000 100% 4,00,000 100%

Note 6: Other equity

3-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 01-Apr-19

Retained earnings (B535.07) (8517.65) (B509.90)

Total other equity (8535.07) (8517.65) (8509.90)

(i) Retained earnings

Opening balance (8517.65) (8509.90)
Profit/ (loss) for the year (17.42) (7.75)
Closing balance (8535.07) (8517.65)

Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Company which can be distributed 1o its equity shareholders in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
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1ts for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 7: Current borrowings

Um

nsecured- at amortised cost
Loans repayable on demand from other parties 109.25 4452.86 445286
Loans from related parties (refer note 13) 445286 109.25 109.25
Total current borrowings 4562.11 4562.11 4562.11

Note B: Trade payables

31-Mar-21

Current  Non- current - Current  Non- current

Trade payables (at amortised cost)

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises (refer note 18)

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

i .51 - 24.71 - 21.02
enterprises and small enterprises

T'otal trade payables 36.51 = 4.7 - 21.02 -

Note 9: Other income

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Net gain on sale of investments 013

Total other income - 0,13

Note 10: Other expenses

Payment to Auditors (see (i) below) 11.80 3.69
Bank charges 5.62 4.19
Total other expenses 17.42 ?.Nﬁl

(1) Payment to Auditors

Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Statutory audit fee 11.80 3.69
TI'otal payment to auditors 11.80 3.69

Note 11: Income tax expense

31-Mar-21 F-Mar-20

Current tax

Deferred tax

T'otal income tax expense recognised in profit or loss -

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate;

3-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Profit/ (loss) before tax (17.42) (7.75)
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (2019-20: 25.168%) (4.38) (1.95)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profit 4.38 1.98
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation - (0.03)
T'otal income tax expense recognised in profit or loss - -

Note 12: Earnings/(loss) per share

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] (17.42) (7.75)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS [B] 4,00,000 4,00,000
Basic earnings/ (loss) per equity share (face value of 2 10 per share) [A/B] (0.04) (0.02)
Diluted earnings,/ (loss) per equity share (face value of 2 10 per share) [A/B] (0.04) (0.02)

8
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ial Bratermnents for the year ended March 31

Note 13: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists

() Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL], Holding Company *
(b} Subhadra Trade and Finance Limited (STFL), Folding Company *

(i) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place
(a) Holding, Company
Frivem Enguneering & Industries Limited (TEIL) *

Subhadra Trade and Finance Limited (STFL) *

(i) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances

: v mpany
Finandial yeay Total

SEEL Y

Nature of transactions with Related Parties

Sale of equity shares 3-Mar-21 - - -
A-Mar-20 - 013 013

Outstanding balances

Payables 31-Mar-21 4452 86 - 445286
31-Mar-20 - 109.25 109,25
M-Apr-19 - 10925 109.25

* During the year, STFL has transferred its entre shareholding in the Company to TEIL

{iv] Terms & conditions
(a) Loan from Holding Company was taken at normal commercial werms & condinons at prevailing market rate of
interest. All other transactions were made on pormal commercial terms and conditions and ar market rales
(b) The outstanding balances at the year-end ure unsecured and settlement occurs in cash
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MNotes o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2021
Whamonnts in & Hisusmds, wntless otheriorse stated)
Note 14: Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes total equity of the Company. The primary objective of the capital management
is to maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. The Company may resort
to further issue of capital to fund expansion of business. The position of total debt and equity is provided hereunder:

31-Mar-21  31-Mar-20 01-Apr-19

Current borrowings (note 7) 4562.11 4562.11 4562.11
Trade payables (note 8) 36.51 24.71 21.02
Total debt 4598.62 4586.82 4583.13
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 4) (0.62) (6.24) (10.20)
Net debt (A) 4598.00 4580.58 4572.83
Total equity (note 5 & note 6) (4535.07) (4517.65) (4509.90)
Total equity and net debt (B) 62.93 62,93 62.93

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020. A business plan will be formulated to make the operations of the Company profitable.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Note 15: Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and trade payables. The Company’s financial assets comprise of cash and
bank balances. The Company's activities does not expose it to market risk and credit risk. The Company manages its liquidity through
internal accruals and capital infusion from the Holding Company.

Considering present state of business operations, the liquidity ratios are not relevant. Financial liabilities mainly include amount payable
to the Holding Company towards the loan. The operations of the Company during carly stages of business will be supported by the
Holding Company through loans or through equity infusion, as appropriate. In view of the aforesaid and due to the fact that the major
amount of financial liabilities is due to the Holding Company, the maturity of financial liabilities is flexible at this stage
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v Ehe Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2021

Nole 16: Fair value measurements

(i) Fi

cial instruments by calegory

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 01-Apr-19

e Amaortised il Amortised L Amorlised
FVTPL* FVTPL*® FYTPL*
cosl cost cost

Financial assels

Investments - - - - - -
Cash and bank balances - 0.62 - 6.24 - 10.30
Total financial assels - 0.62 - 6.24 - 10.30

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - 4562.11 - 109.25 - 109.25
Trade payables - 36,51 - 2471 - 21.02
Tolal financial liabilities - 4598.62 - 133.96 - 130.27

*Mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL. There is no financial instrument which is designated as FVTPL.

(ii) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised
and measured at fair value, To provide an indication about the reliability of the inpuls used in determining fair value, the Company has
classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

Note No. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31 March 2021

Financial assets - - - -

Financial liabilities - . - -

As at 31 March 2020
Financial assels - . i o

Financial liabilities - - = =

As at1 April 2019

Financial assets

- Investments in Equity shares at FVTPL (Unguoted) 3 - - - -

Financial liabilities - . % =

Level 1: Level 1 hierarc
assets or i

y includes financial instruments measured using quoted unadjusted market prices in active markets for identical
bilities. This includes listed equity instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are
traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting dale.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are nol traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market da wl rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all si
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

ificant inpuls required to

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year,

(iii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include the fair value of investment in equity shares of a fellow
subsidiary company. The fair valuation is determined using discounted cash flows technique, Resulting fair value estimates are included
in level 3,

(iv) Valualion processes
The Finance team headed by Group CFO has requisite knowledge and skills in valuation of financial instruments.

(v) Fair value of financial assels and liabilities that are not measured al fair value (bul fair value disclosures are required)

The management considers that the carrying amounls of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements

approximate their fair values mostly due lo their shorl-lerm nature.
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Mates to the Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

(Al imonts e & thousands, o thed)

e rinse

Note 17: Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Based on management analysis, there are no material conmitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as at 31 March 2021, 31
March 2020 and 1 April 2019,

Note 18 : Disclosures of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises

Based on the intimation received by the Company from ils suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the relevant information is provided here below:

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year; as at the end of the year

(i) Principal amount . .
(i) Interest due on above g =

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. )

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under - - -
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006

Note 19: Global health pandemic from COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company has
evaluated the impact of this pandemic on ils business operations and financial position using internal and external sources of
information, including economic forecasts and estimates from market sources, and based on its review of current indicators of fulure
economic conditions, there is no significant impact on carrying amount of the assets due to impairment and on its financial results for the
year ended 31 March 2021, However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with
its nature and duration and accordingly the tmpact may be different in future from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financial statements. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

MNote 20: First time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS
These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, the
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and in the preparation of an opening
Ind AS balance sheet as at 1 April 2019 (the transition date). An explanation of transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS is set out in the
tollowing notes.

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous
GAAP to Ind AS.

A1 Ind AS optional exemplions
AL1 Deemed cost
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as
recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition o Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can
also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets and investment property covered by Ind AS 40 hivestient
Propertivs .

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its investment property at their previous GAAP carrying value

A.2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions

A21 Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs al the date of transition to Ind A5 shall be consistent with estimates made for the
same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is
objective evidence that those estimates were in error,

Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2019 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAI
(after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies).
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A.2.2 De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions
occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition
requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the entity's choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind

AS 109 to financial assets and liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially
accounting for those transactions.

The Company has applied the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS,

A.2.3 Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets (debt instruments) in terms of whether they meet the
amortised cost criteria or the fair value criteria based on the facts and circumstances that existed as of the transition date and the
Company has followed the same.

A.2.4 Impairment of financial assets
The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has
used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date
that financial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the
Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether
there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.

B. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. Transition from previous
GAAP to Ind AS has not affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows and therefore there are no
reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS.

Note 21: Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 18 June 2021 subject to approval of
shareholders.
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